Agenda Item 3
Lake — Woodbine Bridge
Additions & Exterior Alterations

Staff Report
Vicinity Map
Air Photos
Application
Elevations
e Existing Bridge
e Proposed Bridge
Comparison — Existing and Proposed Bridge Elevations
Railing Detail
Cross Sections at Roadway and Bridge
Images — Various Beaux Arts Inspired Bridges

Background Material
Minutes from Past Commission meetings
e November 19, 2014
e September 23, 2015
Information from Public Information Sessions
e December 13, 2021
o Powerpoint Presentation Slide
o Summary of Questions/Responses
e February 16, 2022
o Powerpoint Presentation Slide
o Summary of Questions/Responses

Structural Alternatives Report, Lochner 9/2015
Prepared at the request of the City

Correspondence

Historic Preservation Commission
March 16, 2022



STAFF REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION

TO: Chairman Grinnell and members of the Historic Preservation Commission
DATE.: March 16, 2022
FROM: Catherine Czerniak, Directot of the Community Development Depattment

SUBJECT: Lake — Woodbine Bridge — Demolition and Replacement

PROPERTY OWNER PROPERTY LOCATION HISTORIC DISTRICTS
City of Lake Forest On Lake Road, North of Woodbine Green Bay Road Local and
220 E. Deerpath National Historic Distticts
Lake Forest, IL. 60045

PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES
City Staff
Meg Kindelin, Johnson, Lasky, Kindelin Architect

Summary of the Petition
This is a request for a Certificate of Approptiateness approving demolition of the Lake — Woodbine

Bridge and approving the design and materials of the replacement bridge. The Commission is
involved in the review of the design aspects of the replacement bridge because the bridge 1s in one
of the City’s Local Historic Districts.

Background

This petition differs from those most often reviewed by the Commission in that it involves public
infrastructure. Infrastructure projects like this one are expensive, involve many parties, require
multiple apptovals, and take considerable time given the need for various studies and engineering
and design wotk. As the Commission is aware, all projects involve balancing several interests, the
same is true of this petition, to an even greater extent.

The City has been awate of the need for significant repaits ot replacement of the Lake — Woodbine
Bridge for about ten yeats. The bridge currently is under a weight restriction mandated by the
Mlinois Department of Transportation IDOT), due to the detetiorating condition of the bridge. In
2014 and 2015, the question of whether to repait ot replace the bridge was brought before the
Commission for deliberation and a recommendation to the City Council. After considerable
discussion, on September 23, 2015, the Historic Preservation Commission voted six to one to
recommend replacement of the Lake — Woodbine Bridge. The minutes of the Commission’s
meetings in 2014 and 2015 are included in the Commission’s packet.

Based on the Commission’s recommendation, the City Council approved funding for design work
and directed that grant applications be prepared seeking Federal funds to support the anticipated
$2,840,000 cost of the bridge replacement project. The City’s anticipated share in funding the
replacement bridge is $840,000. As the Commission is awate, the economics of a project are not
under the putview of the Commission however, the above information is offeted as background
information.



Staff Report and Recommendation —Lake — Woodbine Bridge Page 20f 6
March 16, 2022

The Lake — Woodbine Bridge is located on Lake Road, just north of Woodbine Lane. The bridge is
approximately 95 feet in length and spans a ravine that serves as part of the City’s stormwater
conveyance system. The bridge is sutrounded by historic homes, landscaped stteetscapes, landscape
features included masonty walls to the notth and south, narrow streets and limited sidewalks.

Putview of the Commission

At this time, this petition is before the Commission for consideration of the design aspects of the
bridge. The question of repait/restoration or replacement has been decided with past input from
the Commission and preliminaty design work, consistent with the recommendation of the
Commission in 2015, and as authorized by the City Council, has proceeded. The State Historic
Preservation Office has also approved replacement of the bridge as part of the earlier review
process.

The Commission’s putview includes review of the physical and design aspects of the bridge along
with the materials that will be used to construct the replacement bridge and the colors, tones and
textutes of those materials. Architect Meg Kindelin was brought on to the City’s consultant project
team to assure that in addition to a focus on the structural, constructability and durability of the
replacement bridge, there was a focus on the maintaining the historical integrity of the bridge as a
feature of the historic district. Ms. Kindelin’s expetience in and knowledge of presetvation,
testoration and new construction in and around historic districts and buildings is extensive. She also
has a history with Lake Forest most notably playing a lead role several years ago in the restotation
and preservation of the original Howard Van Doren Shaw Ragdale residence. Ms. Kindelin will
make the presentation to the Commission and review the data, study and public input that have
resulted in the replacement bridge proposal now presented to the Commission for review and
action.

Although the decision with respect to replacement versus repair/restoration has alteady occutred,
the Commission’s action as now requested will still need to include the official approval of the
demolition of the bridge thtough the granting of a Certificate of Appropriateness. Consistent with
the Commission’s stated preference for approval of demolition concurrent with approval of a
replacement structure, when one is proposed, the earlier Commission action was a recommendation,
but not official approval.

Staff Evaluation

The seventeen standards that guide the Commission’s decisions are reviewed below again, with a
focus on the design aspects of the bridge: the elements of the railing, the form of the suppotting
structure of the bridge and the materials.

Vatious background materials are included in the Commission’s packet. Based on public discussions
to date and the earlier direction from the Commission, the replacement bridge strives to resemble
the existing bridge to the extent possible recognizing that today’s safety standards and requirements
differ from those that were in place at the time the bridge was constructed. Although through the
ptocess, alternative bridge styles, railing types and ornamentation wete considered, the replacement
bridge hatkens back to the simple design and themes of the existing bridge.

A table is provided below, prepared by the City’s consultants, illustrating the key differences and
similarities between the existing bridge and the proposed replacement bridge. Ms. Kindelin will
speak to these features during the ptesentation.



Staff Report and Recommendation —Lake — Woodbine Bridge Page30f 6
March 16, 2022
Element or Existing
Characteristic Bridge Replacement Bridge
Same Similar Different Notes
Clear-span of ravine
Number of Arches 3 1 desirable for structural and
environmental reasons
More efficient, easier to
Spandrel Type Closed Open inspect and maintain, more
durable, easier to construct
A —
rch/Ra!Img Concrete Concrete
Material
Contcorete Avoid bright white, “new”
. Weathered Replicate appearing comerets. Wogk:
Arch/Railing Color L up of concrete color and
concrete Existing to . .
texture subject to City
Extent approval
Possible PP
Nu'mber of ) 5
Vehicle Lanes
. 19 feet -7 Must matc‘h adjacent
Width of Roadway . 21 feet roadway width at both
inches
ends
Sidewalk Location | West side | West side
ini DA *
Sidewalk Width 4 feet 5 feet Minimum ADA/PROWAG
standard
Overall Bridge Widening slightly offset to
i Width 27 feet 30 feet the west
. Open Open
Railing Type baluster baluster
Railing Height 2'feet -9 3_feet -7 IDOT Minimum Standard
(West) inches inches
Railing Height 3.feet -7 3'feet -7 IDOT Minimum Standard
(East) inches inches
Railing Pedestal . 1foot-6 -~
. d
Height (West) 7 inches inches IDOT Minimum Standard
Railing Pedestal 1foot-6 .
. IDOT d
Height (East) 1 foot inches Minimum Standard
. 1 foot-7 1foot-6 Reduced to accommodate
Baluster Height . X . -
inches inches required railing pedestal
~ Baluster Spacing | 7.5 inches 6 inches Minimum to meet code
Top Cap Height 7 inches 7 inches

*PROWAG — Public Right—of—W:;Ly Accessibility Standards




Staff Report and Recommendation —Lake — Woodbine Bridge Page 4 of 6
March 16, 2022

Findings
A staff review of the applicable standards in the City Code is provided below. Findings in response
to the standards are offered for the Commission’s consideration.

Standard 1— Height.

This standard is met. The height of the railing is minimized to the extent possible while still meeting
IDOT requitements. The railing exceeds the height of the existing railing which is nonconforming
to current requirements. The new railing, incorporating the components noted in the above table,
the pedestal, baluster and cap, at the tallest point is one foot taller than the existing railing.

Standard 2 — Propottion of Front Fagade.
This standard is not applicable to this request.

Standard 3 — Proportion of Openings.

This standard is met. Care has been taken to maintain the spacing of the balusters as close to the
existing spaces as possible. To meet current requirements however, the balusters are placed slightly
closet together to minimize the chances of a small child getting through the openings. Various
options for balusters and other railing treatments were explored, the recommended option holds
most true to the existing pattern of openings.

A single arch replaces the existing three arch concept howevet, the elements of the arch maintain
consistency with the symmetry and the sense of segmentation of the bridge. Interestingly, from
some petspectives, with the existing vegetation, only the center arch of the existing bridge 1s visible.

Standatrd 4 — Rhythm of Solids to Voids.

This standard is met. Again, to the greatest extent possible, the existing pattern of solids to voids is
followed. As noted above current regulations require some adjustment but extensive study was
completed to achieve a design that closely resembles the existing bridge.

Standard 5 — Spacing on the Street.

This standard is met. The replacement bridge will be located in the footprint of the existing bridge,
in filling the gap created by the tavine that travels across Lake Road. The relationship of the bridge
to the nearby homes will not change.

The bridge will stand separate and apart from the masonry walls on the east side of Lake Road on
the adjoining propetties to the notth and south. How the intervening space between the end of the
bridge and the beginning of the walls will be resolved is yet to be determined and will need to take
into account safety and protection of the slope of the ravine. The current resolution of the gap is
not an elegant solution, and the goal is to improve upon the condition that exists today.

Standard 6 — Rhythm of Entrance Porches.
This standard is not applicable to this petition.

Standard 7 — Relationship of Materials and Texture.

This standard is met. The bridge will be concrete. The concrete will match the texture and color of
the bridge to the extent possible. Importantly, a bright, white conctete will be avoided. Mockups of
the matetial will be required and, if desired, available for Commission review prior to the start of
construction.



Staff Report and Recommendation —Lake — Woodbine Bridge Page 5 of 6
March 16, 2022

Standard 8 — Roof Shapes.
This standard is not applicable to this petition.

Standard 9 — Walls of Continuity.
This standard is met. The elements of the bridge will be simple and consistent across the length of
the bridge.

Standard 10 — Scale.
This standard is met. The btidge will be nearly identical to the existing bridge in scale. As noted
above, the railings must be higher to meet current safety standards.

Standard 11 — Directional Expression of Front Elevation.
This standard is not applicable to this petition.

Standard 12 — Preservation of Historic Material.

This standard is not met. The btidge is structurally unsound. Based on studies and prior
deliberations of the Historic Preservation Commission and the City Council, repair and restoration
of the existing bridge has been ruled out as an option. A decision has been made to replace the
bridge.

Standard 13 — Protection of Natural Resources.

This standard will be met. All available measures will be taken to presetve and protect the ravine,
significant trees and undetstoty vegetation duting both the demolition and construction process.
Importantly, the design of the bridge minimizes the amount of disturbance necessaty in the ravine.

Upon completion of the project, the City will evaluate whether enhancement of the existing trees
and vegetation near the bridge is needed and if so, will enhance the atea with native plantings.

Standard 14 — Compatibility.

This standard is met. The style, exterior matetials and architectural detailing of the replacement
bridge are designed to closely emulate the existing bridge with some modification as required by
curtent safety regulations. Illinois Department of Transportation — IDOT review of the bridge is
required with or without Federal funding because the length of the bridge is more than 20 feet.

Standard 15 — Repair to deteriorated features.
This standard is not applicable to this request. The existing bridge will be removed and replaced.

Standard 16 — Surface cleaning.
This standard is not applicable to this request. The existing btidge will be removed and replaced.

Standard 17 — Integrity of historic ptoperty.

This standard is met. The bridge is designed in a simple, classic, but understated mannet to
replicate, to the extent possible under current regulations, the existing bridge. The proposed
matetial, concrete in a subdued tone, respects the character of the surrounding historic district and
allows the landscaped streetscape of Lake Road and the important historic homes to dominate. The
bridge will remain as an important but quiet element of interest along an important streetscape.



Staff Report and Recommendation —Lake — Woodbine Bridge Page 6 of 6
March 16, 2022

PUBLIC COMMENT

Public notice of this public heating was provided in accotdance with the City requirements and
practices. Notice was mailed by the Community Development Depattment to sutrounding property
owners and to community membets who participated in the two community meetings held by the
project team to seek input on the design concepts.

The agenda for this meeting was posted at various public locations. As of the date of this writing
cotrespondence was teceived from one resident and was received and was distributed to the
Commission members. It is staff's understanding that some Commissioners also received direct
cotrespondence and communication from a resident on this petition.

RECOMMENDATION

Grant a Certificate of Approptiateness apptoving the demolition of the Lake — Woodbine Bridge
and approving the replacement bridge as presented subject to final approval of all elements of the
bridge by various outside agencies including IDOT and the State Historic Preservation Office.

1. A mockup of the concrete shall be provided prior to construction of the bridge. The intent 1s to
replicate the color, tone and texture of the existing bridge to the extent possible. A bright, white
concrete shall be avoided.

2. As apptopriate, existing significant trees and vegetation on the City right-of-way and on adjacent
ptivate properties shall be protected.

3. Public notice of construction, construction truck routes and detour routes shall all be included in
the pre-construction planning process and communicated to the community.



S—p—"_ T
=

Area of Request

= | "wr

Woodbine Bridge

&




i Area of Request [,
Woodbine Bridge %




_ | Woodbine Bridge A\

5




LAKE FOREST
THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION APPLICATION FOR A

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

PROJECT ADDRESS LA LE ROAD) Haﬂ-‘m of \Lfg@q}gpd E
)

APPLICATION TYPE DEMO LiTon) 2 (Z EPLACEMENT  OF B’i\ Doz

RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS COMMERCIIL PROJECTS
[] New Residence [[1 Demolition Complete | [[] New Building [[] Landscape/Parking
[C] New Accessory Building [] Demolition Partial [] Addition/Alteration [] Lighting
[] Addition/Alteration [l Height Variance [J Height Variance [ ] Signage or Awnings

Building Scale Variance Other Other
= i L W OteErAsTRyCTy
RePLACE menT™

HISTORIC DISTRICT OR LOCAL LANDMARK (leave blank if unknown)
East Lake Forest District O Green Bay Road District [0 Vine/Oakwood/Green Bay Road District

ca_l L?{ndmark Property O Other
or District

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION ARCHITECT/BUILDER INFORMATION

L C\T‘\t o Lﬂ\z_E —FI;QE‘ST"

Owner of Property Name and Title of Person Presenting Project
220 E. DeereaTs 5 g m
Croner's Street Address (may be different from project address) Name of Firm
Lave Foresr JL 60A5
City, State and Zip Code . Street Address
Phone Number Faz Number City, State and Zip Code
Emazl Address ' Phone Number Faz Number

Email Address

X _/ Al Ao
Representative’s Signature (Architect/ Butlder)

Ouwner’s Signature

The staff report is available the Friday before the meeting, after 3:00pm.
Please email a copy of the staff report OOwner [ REPRESENTATIVE
Please fax a copy of the staff report O OwWNER [0 REPRESENTATIVE
Y will pick up a copy of the staff report at . L
the Community Development Department QW s Sl HEERESEN SR




EAST ELEVATION — EXISTING CONDITIONS

+£106'~14" OVERALL SPAN

EXISTING RAILING
/_

CODOOOCDOCD [COCCOODOCOODl [ECECpongd) [CEOOCECO] [CCOOCOED] [COO0COCOCO EOCCDOCEELL 1.

1

6”3

ABUTMENT DOWN TO RAVINE
! ! FLOOR. HEIGHT VARIES, TYP. ! &

EXISTING EAST BRIDGE ELEVATION

Dy
DATE 8/30/12
LOCHNER ],!;.QN.MSW WOODBINE BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 5o
CHCAGO, LLINOIS 60605 ARCHITECTS EXISTING EAST BRIDGE ELEVATION B—EXTG




PROPOSED BRIDGE ELEVATION

.L'— ¢ Abutment ¢ Spandrel/ ! ¢ Structure L-— ¢ Spandrel/ !
| Pedestal | l Pedestal |
aaga étE!EEEIIEEEE!EEEE!IE!EE!EEEEEII §!§!§!§X§!§!§X§!IEEEEEE!EEI agayagagagatateqiipagategagagatatey |
] | ]
— 1 i '

| |
| ' |
| I |

| | _+/
| | |
| |

ELEVATION AT BRIDGE




COMPARISON - EXISTING BRIDGE AND PROPOSED BRIDGE

SR ATV (R

i
g —— ) sl b
L FART 3] LER L L RS 1RaENI NN

| |
| |
| |
1, 2 3 |, 4
l:]. : al i ’.' ™ ‘__ ;,!_ 193029 ..‘-j;"‘."! 71 !! l-.-. S
R .y 3 B
: — = E——r G ——
| ; T |
I . {weme FDASITIERT | /r
o l |
| f

Lake-Woodbine Bridge




PROPOSED RAILING DETAIL

1'-6" 9 7 Spaces at 1'-0" = 7'-0" 9" 1'-6"

Z|
:|
:‘

1
I
1

gagagagagagas

|_
|
I\

RAILING DETAIL

*p,—e/,m/n r fumensmns shown, to I I st aée
Cet‘? a}’, me sions w;ll be {
¢ ightly” as ridge géometry is f Zed.



23-2"

N 1-7"

96"

96" 17

T

1.5%

1.5%

SECTION AT ROADWAY

6%

-6

44"

1-6"

| e | ok o

291"
P o 106" . 106" s
T - o |
[N
_l
m | I
167% i
™~
1.5% 1.5% V’—
——
L e e

SECTION AT BRIDGE

44"




EXAMPLES OF BEAUX ARTS INSPIRED BRIDG

114101 MA L

)




Past Commission Meeting Minutes
Previous Deliberations on the Lake — Woodbine Bridge

Repair/Restoration versus Replacement



Excerpt
The City of Lake Forest
Historic Preservation Commission
Proceedings of the November 19, 2014 Meeting

A regular meeting of the Lake Forest Historic Preservation Commission was held on Wednesday,
November 19, 2014, at 6:30 p.m., at the City of Lake Forest City Hall, 220 E. Deerpath, Lake
Forest, lllinois.

Historic Preservation Commissioners present: Chairman Pairitz and Commiissioners John Travers,
Robert Alfe, Wells Wheeler, Jim Preschlack, Susan Athenson and Mary Ellen Swenson

Commissioners absent: None

City staff present: Catherine Czerniak, Director of Community Development

skkskesk

1. Presentation of preliminary concepts for replacement of the Woodbine Bridge located
on Lake Road, north of Woodbine Lane. Commission and public input is requested.
No action is requested at this fime.

Owner: City of Lake Forest
Representative: Robert Ells, Engineering Superintendent, City of Lake Forest
David Shannon, P.E. Lochner
Ken Magnus, P.E. CFM, Bridge Program Manager, Bleck Engineering

Chairman Pairitz invited a presentation from City staff noting that this presentation is an
introduction of this City project for initial input.

Mr. Ells introduced the project noting that preliminary engineering is underway to identify
options for addressing issues with the Woodbine Bridge. He stated that the bridge is
located on Lake Road, north of Woodbine Road. He infroduced the City's consultant,
Mr. Shannon, who is conducting the analysis. He said the project is presented to the
Commission and the public at this fime for input prior to the selection of a design for @
replacement bridge. He provided some background on the bridge noting that it was
built about 100 years ago and is in poor condition despite the rehabilitation that was
completed 38 years ago. He stated that out of 100 possible points on the IDOT rating
system, the bridge received 33 points. He explained that given the condition of the
bridge, replacement, rather than restoration and repair, is proposed. He stated that
replacement is recommended for bridges that score below 50 on the IDOT scale. He
noted that the concrete arches and piers are original to the bridge and are in an
advanced state of deterioration. He noted that the piers show signs of cracking. He
pointed out that the bridge deck is 18" wide, narrower than Lake Road which is 21" wide.
He stated that the existing sidewalk on the west side of Lake Road is only 3-1/2" wide and
does not meet accessibility requirements. He stated that the bridge railings were
replaced in 1978 and are deteriorating. He added that they are a substandard height
and that the gaps between the balusters do not meet the 4" maximum for safety. He
said the State Historic Preservation Office accepted the recommendation for
replacement of the bridge with the requirement that the design of the replacement
bridge be submitted for State review for compatibility with the historic district. He
explained that the City received Federal funds to support the preliminary design work.



Historic Preservation Commission Minutes
November 19, 2014 - Page 2

He explained that most of the preliminary work, including environmental and drainage
analyses, and hydraulic studies, is completed. He stated that consideration of possible
designs for the replacement bridge is underway. He reviewed photos of the existing
bridge noting the deteriorated condition. He reviewed three styles proposed as options
for the replacement bridge: a box beam design which could be slightly arched to mimic
a spandrel arch, a steel plate girder design which is similar to the box beam design, or a
spandrel arch design. He stated that staff recommends the spandrel arch option for the
greatest consistency with the existing bridge. He acknowledged that the replacement is
proposed with a single, open arch to avoid locating a pier in the ravine. He stated that
although this will not replicate the historic design, this option will minimize any impact to
the ravine and will result in the removal of all concrete structures from the ravine. He
reviewed an elevation of the existing railings reiteratfing that they were replaced in 1978
and are deteriorating. He presented an option for a replacement railing that meets
current standards for height and closely mimics the existing railing. He presented some
other options for the railings. He stated that the intent is to construct a replacement
bridge that appears much like the existing bridge.

Ms. Czerniak reiterated that the initial technical studies have been completed and that
input and direction is requested from the Commission prior to preliminary work on a
design for a replacement bridge. She stated that input is requested on whether the
design should mimic the historic bridge or go in a different direction. She stated that the
design phase of the project is expected to take about 12-months.

Chairman Pairitz questioned if it is possible to rehabilitate, rather than replace, the
existing bridge and if not, whether it is possible to completely rebuild the bridge exactly
as it exists today.

In response to questions from Chairman Pairitz, Mr. Shannon, the City's consulting
engineer, explained that a physical inspection of the bridge was conducted and a
number of issues were identified. He stated that the bridge cannot be repaired because
of the age of the concrete. He noted that there is failure occurring internal to the
structure because of water infiltration. He explained that the concrete filled spandrel is
collecting water because the top is not sealed. He stated that it would be prohibitively
expensive to repair the bridge. He added that there are questions about whether the
foundations of the piers are intact noting that the original plans for the bridge are not
available. He stated that the bridge as currently constructed is a design that was
popular 100 years ago. He pointed out that there are better ways to build bridges today.
He stated that the State and Federal agencies may entertain a project that repairs the
bridge but commented that in his opinion, there is no reason to pursue that approach.
He stated that there are ways to recreate the existing bridge with a replacement bridge.

In response to a question from Commissioner Swenson, Mr. Shannon confirmed that it
may be possible to restore the existing bridge but that approach would be too
expensive.

In response to a guestion from Commissioner Athenson, Mr. Shannon confirmed that the
railings were reconstructed in the late 1970s.

Commissioner Preschlack stated that it will be important for the Commission to
understand what elements remain from the original bridge and who designed the



Historic Preservation Commission Minutes
November 19, 2014 - Page 3

original bridge. He stated that understanding the historical context and the approach
taken on other bridges in Lake Forest will be helpful to the Commission in considering how
this project should proceed. He added that it would be helpful to have some
information on projected costs for the different options noting that in the past,
community members have gotten involved in preserving important structures. He stated
that based on the information presented to date, he is less inclined to move toward
replacement, rather than restoration.

In response to gquestions from Commissioner Preschlack, Mr. Ells clarified that the
concrete arches and the piers are original to the bridge. He stated that the rest of the
bridge was replaced in 1978. He confirmed that original plans for the bridge have not
yet been found but acknowledged that there may be local resources that could assist in
finding the plans. He stated that there are 15 vehicle bridges in Lake Forest and 10 have
been reconstructed or rehabilitated in the last 10 years.

Hearing no further comments, Chairman Pairitz invited public comment.

Maureen Grinnell stated that she is speaking on behalf of the Lake Forest Preservation
Foundation. She stated that the bridge is a Century old and was constructed during the
time of David Adler and Howard Van Doren Shaw. She noted that the bridge was
designed to allow unigque views of the Lake and the ravine. She stated that the
architectural integrity and the beauty should be preserved. She noted that the existing
bridge only has a sidewalk on the west side of the bridge but the proposed plan adds a
sidewalk on the east side where there are no connecting sidewalks. She stated that the
open balusters allow views through the bridge. She compared the proposed plans with
the existing bridge noting that the three spans are replaced with a single arch. She
pointed out that changes are proposed in the height of the railing and width of the
railing cap. She stated that the thinner, taller bridge that is proposed will be inconsistent
with the historic character of the bridge and will be detrimental to the character of the
Historic District and the Lake Road streetscape. She stated that in recent conversations
with the State Historic Preservation Agency, the Foundation learned that IDOT’s
requirements can and will be waived for historic bridges. She stated that the Foundation
urges that the bridge restoration be considered by IDOT under a special review. She
urged ongoing discussion and planning and a focus on restoration of the bridge
consistent with the current character.

In response to questions from Chairman Pairitz, Ms. Grinnell stated that when viewed in
elevation, the existing bridge is a closed spandrel arch but the proposed plan indicates
an open spandrel arch, a significant difference. She suggested that mimicking the
current design would be more aesthetically pleasing. She noted that the existing railing is
the same width at the top and at the base.

Marina Currier, President of the Lake Forest Garden Club, stated the Garden Club's
interest in the history of bridges and past involvement in preservation. She stated that in
the past there were discussions about filling in the ravines and the Garden Club was
involved in seeking mutually beneficial solutions. She questioned why widening the
bridge and adding a sidewalk on the east side of the bridge is important. She stated
that asidewalk on the east side will not connect to anything since there are no sidewalks
on the east side of Lake Road. She stated that the best way 1o keep speeds down on
the road is to keep the bridge narrow rather than widening it.



Historic Preservation Commission Minutes
November 19, 2014 - Page 4

John Dick, 200 Woodbine Road, provided photo shopped images of a closed spandrel
bridge noting that the bridge will look different with one long open space. He noted that
the information sent to the neighbors did not show the proposed expanded width of the
bridge. He pointed out the additional mass that will be added with the proposed plan.
He noted the comment that the ravine would not be disturbed but noted the side
abutments of cement that would be needed. He stated that the abutments would be
located in the steep slope setback and could disturb the ravine more than expected.

He presented a photo with a second 8' sidewalk drawn to reflect the increased overall
width. He stated that the additional width of the bridge will impact some tfrees. He
urged caution in considering the changes proposed.

Hearing no further requests to speak from the public, Chairman Pairitz commented that a
sidewalk on both sides of the bridge is not a good idea. He invited response to public
testimony.

Mr. Shannon clarified that the sidewalk on both sides of the bridge is proposed as o
safety measure noting that it will give people a place of refuge on the east side of the
bridge. He added that the sidewalk also separates the road from the bridge railing to
protect the railing without installing a guard rail. He stated that to do something
differently, variances will need to be requested from the Federal and State governments
and the City will need to explain the reasons for the requested variances.

Chairman Pairitz stated that he heard a preference for more focus on character and less
focus on execution. He invited comments from the Commission.

Commissioner Athenson commented that the proposed increased width of the bridge
seems to be an area of concem.

In response to questions from Commissioner Athenson, Mr. Shannon, stated that the
bridge is not individudally listed, but is in the historic district. He stated that any
replacement would need to be designed in keeping with the character of the district.
He discussed the possibility of a curb and how that would affect the width of the bridge.
He reiterated that variances can be requested.

In response to questions from Commissioner Wheeler, Mr. Shannon stated that the
existing sidewalk is not wide enough to meet current requirements making it necessary fo
widen the bridge deck.

In response to a guestion from Commissioner Swenson, Mr. Shannon stafed that the
requirements are fairly strict with respect to the height of the railing and width of the
gaps between the balusters.

Commissioner Athenson stated that the balusters should be replicated to the extent
possible.

Commissioner Preschlack questioned how many accidents have occurred on the bridge
and stated that information would be helpful. He stated a preference for remaining
within the existing footprint of the bridge. He urged the engineers to be sensitive 1o the
feedback from the neighbors regarding the appearance of the bridge. He stated that



Historic Preservation Commission Minutes
November 19, 2014 - Page 5

every effort should be made to replicate the existing bridge.

Commissioner Swenson questioned whether the Commission, with the information now
available, would support demolition of the bridge.

Chairman Pairitz summarized that the intent of the presentation was to get information
out about the Woodbine bridge project that is being considered and to provide input.
He stated that the engineers have said that the bridge is not safe in its present condition.
He stated that work is needed to determine whether the bridge can be rebuilt, or needs
to be replaced.

In response to comments from Chairman Pairitz, Mr. Shannon stated that if the bridge
was truly a historic bridge it could be repaired but cautioned that it may need the same
type of repairs again in ten years. He stated that the bridge has reached the end of its
life noting that it was already repaired in 1978.

Chairman Pairitz stated that economic impacts are not under the purview of the
Commission. He stated that it is important to understand if rebuilding the bridge is a real
option and if so, any drawbacks associated with that approach including the longevity
of the repairs.

Commissioner Preschlack said that in the future, if the Commission is presented with a
request to demolish the bridge and replace it, the standard demolition criteria will need
to be considered.

Chairman Pairitz stated that safety issues need to be considered.

Commissioner Travers stated if in fact it is demonstrated that the bridge needs 1o be
removed, it seems that the best approach would be to replace it with a bridge that
replicates the existing bridge to the extent possible. He stated that in his opinion, all
modern safety standards should be met.

Ms. Czerniak summarized that the Commission would like further information explaining
whether or not the existing bridge can be repaired and what the drawbacks, if any, of
that approach would be. She noted that if the need for replacement is justified, the
Commission’s direction is that the replacement bridge should mimic, to the extent
possible, the existing bridge while af the same time, meeting reasonable modern safety
standards. She stated that updates on this project will be presented to the Commission
throughout the design development and study process. She stated that eventually, the
Commission will need to consider a request for a Certificate of Appropriateness for this
project.

srskskok



Excerpt
The City of Lake Forest
Historic Preservation Commission
Proceedings of the September 23, 2015 Meeting

A regular meeting of the Lake Forest Historic Preservation Commission was held on
Wednesday, September 23, 2015, at 6:30 p.m., at the City of Lake Forest City Hall, 220 E.
Deerpath, Lake Forest, lllinois.

Historic Preservation Commissioners present: Chairman Preschlack and Commissioners
Pete Schaefer, Wells Wheeler, John Travers, Susan Athenson, Robert Alfe, and Carol
Gayle.

Commissioners absent: None

City staff present: Kate McManus, Assistant Planner and Catherine Czerniak, Director of
Community Development

*kokok

4. Consideration of a report on the Lake Woodbine Bridge. The Commission is
asked to make a recommendation on whether work should proceed in the
direction of replacing the bridge or if further due diligence should be
undertaken to explore the feasibility and cost of restoring and rehabilitating
the existing bridge.

Owner: The City of Lake Forest

Representatives: Robert Ells, Superintendent of Engineering, City of Lake Forest
David Shannon, P.E., Lochner
Colleen Malone, P.E., Lochner

Chairman Preschlack asked the Commission for any conflicts of interest or Ex
Parte contacts. He disclosed that he heard from 2 residents who have concerns
about the bridge, but did not discuss any specifics of the project. Hearing no
additional conflicts or Ex Parte conflicts, he invited a presentation from the
petitioner.

Mr. Shannon stated that the Woodbine Bridge was built in 1912 and repaired in
1978 with a new railing and spandrel walls. He added that the State Historic
Preservation Office was contacted and stated that a replacement bridge, in
keeping with the character of the historic district could be considered. He stated
that an examination of the bridge was completed to assess the condition of the
bridge. He noted that the replacement railings, from the 1978 repairs, are not
structural and it is unknown if they are similar to the original railing design. He
added that the railings do not meet current safety standards, but could be
repaired. He stated that the bridge deck and sidewalk are narrow and that a
replacement bridge would be required to have a wider deck. He noted that the



Historic Preservation Commission Minutes
September 23, 2015 - Page 2

spandrel walls were replaced in 1978 and are in good condition. He stated that
the arch barrel design is original and is showings signs of distress. He also noted
that efflorescence and map cracking are causing the concrete to deteriorate.
He stated that the original plans for the bridge have not been located. He stated
that the piers and abutments are deteriorating. He stated that repair would
require the deck and spandrel walls to be removed, and would result in
essentially replacing the bridge at that point. He concluded that replacement,
rather than repair of the bridge, is recommended. He added that the life of any
repairs would be limited.

Ms. Czerniak stated that this project was infroduced to the Commission in
November. She stated that the Commission expressed concern that the project
wais moving too quickly and requested more information on the existing bridge
and the potential for restoration. She stated that in response, the City's consultant
evaluated 3 approaches; a no build approach, repair and restoration, and
replacement of the bridge. She explained that at this fime, the City Council
asked the Commission to consider the information available and forward a
recommendation on how the project should be approached. She stated that
the Council will consider the Commission’s recommendation and make a final
decision on how to proceed. She stated that the City’s consultant recommends
replacement of the bridge. She stated that if the Council decides to proceed
with replacement of the bridge, design development will begin and the
proposed design will be presented to the Commission for evaluation and public
comment. She noted that a replacement bridge can be design in a manner that
is sensitive to the character of the streetscape, ravine and the Historic District. She
suggested that a public forum could be held during the design development
process to get public input early in the design process.

In response to a question from Chairman Preschlack, Ms. Czerniak confirmed that
the demolition criteria should be considered, particularly with respect to the
integrity of the bridge. She noted that if the project proceeds as a demolition
and replacement, the Commission would ultimately be asked to take final action
on the project and findings would be prepared and presented fo the Commission
at that time.

In response to questions from Chairman Preschlack, Mr. Shannon stated that the
bridge is already showing signs of deterioration and the map cracking is a major
concern. He added that the condition of the interior of the bridge is unknown
and would require extensive investigation and corings which themselves would
impact the bridge.

In response to questions from Chairman Preschlack, Ms. Malone stated that if is
difficult to project a specific remaining life span of the bridge. She stated that
when concrete deteriorates, it changes how it carries weight. She added that
water damage is evident and accelerates the rate of deterioration. She stated
that failure of the bridge is not eminent, but could occur in the next 10 years. She



Historic Preservation Commission Minutes
September 23, 2015 - Page 3

added that officials at both the State and Federal level believe it is time o
address the bridge's condition and are willing to provide funding to support the
project.

In response to a question from Commissioner Travers, Ms. Malone confirmed that
it is possible to do nothing at this point, but the condition of the bridge will need
to be addressed in the near future.,

In response to questions from Chairman Preschlack, Ms. Malone stated that the
arch barrels are essentially the structure and the extent of deterioration in the
arch barrels is wide spread. She added that there is likely no part of the barrel
that is salvageable and repair will essentially be a replacement. She noted that fo
repair the bridge, further tests would be required including boring and probes of
the foundation. She estimated that the scope of the testing would be 3-6

months. She stated that she does not have information on the cost of the testing.

In response to questions from Commissioner Travers, Ms. Czerniak confirmed that
the City owns the bridge. She stated that to conduct proper studies, the City
hired a consultant and the consultant recommends replacement of the bridge.

Chairman Preschlack stated that this project differs from how a demolition of a
residence is handled and is more similar to Forest Park and other unique projects.
He added that the review process is not a one size fits all. He noted that the
public has been and will be involved in the project. He stated that he is
comfortable with the review process as it has been crafted noting that the City
Council has requested a recommendation from the Commission, early in the
process, to help the Council determine how the bridge should be approached.

In response to a question from Commissioner Athenson, Ms. Malone stated that
because the bridge is not very long, there are many engineering opportunities to
design the replacement bridge to be sensitive to and improve the health of the
ravine.

In response to questions from Commissioner Athenson, Mr. Shannon added that a
clear span bridge will allow the pier to be removed from the ravine and more
sunlight to support vegetation under the bridge. He stated that rubble from the
1978 repair was left in the ravine and will be removed. He stated that the new
bridge will need to be about 3 to 4 feet wider to meet current regulations and to
maftch the roadway width. He noted that the existing railings do not meet current
regulations due to the spacing of the element.

Ms. Malone added that the existing bridge extends beyond the ravine and the
length of the bridge could be shortened if desired.

In response to questions from Commissioner Wheeler, Mr. Shannon confirmed that
the current bridge does not meet applicable standards and he confirmed that



Historic Preservation Commission Minutes
September 23, 2015 - Page 4

there are some utilities below the bridge. He stated that the presence of utilities
does not present any concerns. He acknowledged that the life of the bridge
could be extended by further limiting the weight limits on the bridge.

Ms. Malone emphasized that the deterioration found in the bridge is so wide
spread that efforts to repair the bridge would essentially result in replacement of
the bridge.

In response to a question from Commissioner Schaefer, Mr. Ells confirmed that
there has not been a recent review of the utility lines under the bridge, but noted
that there are no known concerns. Hearing no further questions from the
Commission, Chairman Preschlack invited public comment.

John Dick stated that he lives next to the bridge and requested clarification on
the width of the replacement bridge compared to the roadway.

In response to public testimony, Mr. Shannon clarified that the edge of pavement
width would match the roadway width. He noted that as measured, the bridge is
18 feet wide and the road is 21 feet wide. He noted that the current sidewalk is 4
feet wide and would need to be 5 feet wide to meet current requirements. He
added that when design options explored, specifics on the options for the width
of the bridge will be presented.

Chairman Preschlack commented that his preference is that the width of the
bridge remains the same. He added that the dimensions of any proposed
replacement bridge and a comparison to the dimensions of the existing bridge
should be clearly detailed when plans are presented to the Commission.

Ted Roberts, 1020 Lake Road, stated that the bridge is functionally obsolete and
too narrow for cross traffic. He added that the structure is decrepit and is an
eyesore and the sidewalk is not a normal width, He commented that repair would
be a waste of money and the report makes it clear that the condition of the
bridge is poor. He added that replacement will be an inconvenience, but there
are plenty of alternate roads. He concluded stating that the design of the
replacement bridge should meet the high standards of Lake Forest.

Art Miller, 169 Wildwood Road, suggested that City develop a consistent
approach for addressing bridges throughout the City. He stated that the
replacement bridge should replicate the original design to the extent possible
noting that the design of the top of the bridge is most important. He noted that
the railings should replicate the original and the concrete mix should look similar
to the existing concrete. He stated that the width should be consistent with the
road and suggested using masonry like other bridges in area. He also suggested
considering separating pedestrian and vehicular lanes and cautioned that the
design should not appear fake looking.



Historic Preservation Commission Minutes
September 23, 2015 - Page 5

Roger Christoph, 885 Woodbine Lane, commended the Commission for taking
the time to consider the replacement and stated that he thinks the existing
bridge is charming and adds character to the neighborhood. He expressed
concern that the new bridge will look like the Mayflower Road Bridge and stated
that the replacement bridge should be very similar to the existing bridge in
appearance.

Captain Jim Lovell, 964 Lake Road, stated that he is comfortable with replacing
the bridge, but asked that the ambience and character of the existing bridge be
retained. He stated that replacement should occur only if the existing bridge
cannot be repaired and the replacement bridge should be appropriate for the
City and neighborhood.

Hearing no further comments, Chairman Preschlack invited final comments from
the Commission.

Commissioner Travers stated that without a historic assessment of the bridge, it is
difficult to make a recommendation on the question of demolition.

Chairman Preschlack stated that this is an unusual project in that the Commission
is being asked not to take final action on a petition, but instead to make a
recommendation on the approach that should be taken with respect to moving
forward with the bridge project. He noted that a formal petition on this matter
will come back to the Commission for action once the City Council provides
direction on which approach should be followed. He stated that the required
reports, analysis and plans will be presented before the Commission is asked to
take formal action.

Commissioner Travers reviewed and commented on the demolition criteria. He
noted that criterion 1 is met because a large portion of the bridge was replaced
in 1978. He stated that criterion 2 is met bridge because although the bridge is
contributing to the district, the replacement bridge will in part mifigate the
demolition and contribute to the character of the district. He stated that criterion
3is met because demolition would not be contrary to the historic preservation
chapter and the replacement bridge will preserve the historic character of the
district. He noted that criterion 4 is met because most of the bridge is constructed
of concrete from 1978 and the replacement structure will be more or less in kind.
He stated that criterion 5is not applicable and concluded that based on the
information available at this time, demolition of the bridge appears to sufficiently
meet the applicable criteria. He added that if further information on the
significance of the existing bridge is discovered, the Commission may reconsider
the criteria.

Chairman Preschlack stated that in his opinion, the “no build” option is not
feasible. He noted that as proposed, the development of a design for a
replacement bridge will provide opportunities for public input. He noted that in his



Historic Preservation Commission Minutes
September 23, 2015 - Page 6

opinion, it is not redlistic to recommend further testing and investigation of the
existing bridge. He stated confidence that the design development and public
review process will allow both function and aesthetic concerns to be addressed.
He stated that he is comfortable with replacement as long as the design of the
replacement bridge is sensitive fo context of the neighborhood.

Commissioner Athenson stated that in her opinion, replacement of the bridge is
the only option noting that safety is a priority. She also noted that a replacement
bridge will provide the opportunity to restore the ravine. She added that the
railings on the replacement bridge should be similar in character to the historic
railings.

Commissioner Gayle stated that the report was very helpful and that in her
opinion, repair or replacement are the only options to consider. She added that
replacement is most appropriate approach, noting that repair would only solve
the problem for a limited time.

Commissioner Schaefer stated that ultimately replacement of the bridge is
needed, but noted that based on the information provided, the existing bridge
could last an additional 10 years. He stated that he does not feel comfortable
recommending replacement of the bridge at this point without having the
opportunity to review financial information comparing the costs of repairs and
replacement. He added that City Council has various financial pressures and
stated that based on the information available, he cannot support a
recommendation to replace the bridge.

In response to comments from Commissioner Schaefer, Chairman Preschlack
clarified the role of the Historic Preservation Commission noting that economics of
a project is not under the purview of the Commission. He noted that the
Commission's role is to ensure that the historic character and integrity of the City
are retained and the applicable criteria met.

Ms. Czerniak stated that the City Council will consider the economics and timing
of the project in the context of the overall City budget. She noted that this
project is identified in the City's Capital Improvement Program which is approved
annually by the Council. She added that there is an opportunity o obtain grant
funding for the replacement bridge. She emphasized that the Commission is
recommending an approach to the City Council.

Chairman Preschlack stated that the timing of replacing the bridge is not up to
the Commission.

Commissioner Wheeler noted that the existing bridge fits well into the landscape
and it will be important that the replacement bridge does the same.

Commissioner Travers asked that the testimony of the neighbors be included in



Historic Preservation Commission Minutes
September 23, 2015 - Page 7

the minutes and a copy provided to the City Council.
Commissioner Alfe stated that he is supportive of replacing the bridge.

Commissioner Wheeler noted that it is clear from public testimony that residents
want a functional bridge that is appropriately designed for the neighborhood.

Hearing no further comments, Chairman Preschlack invited a motion.

Commissioner Travers made a motion to recommend replacement of the bridge
to the City Council based on the information presented to the Commission,
public testimony, the deliberations of the Commission and the expectation that
replacement bridge will be sensitively and appropriately designed and that
adequate opportunities for public input be provided during the design
development process.

Commissioner Wheeler seconded the motion and the Commission voted éto 1 fo
approve the motion with Commissioner Schaefer voting nay.

skaesk sk



PRESENTATION ~ COMMUNITY MEETING 12/13/2021

City of Lake Forest
Information and Public Input Meeting
December 13, 2021

Lake Woodbine Bridge

..............

Lake Woodbine Bridge

Welcome

||||||||||

::::::::::::::




12/13/2021

Lake Woodbine Bridge

Introductions
City of Lake Forest

Mike Thomas — Director of Public Works
Byron Kutz - Superintendent of Engineering

Lochner

Dave Shannon — Project Manager
Brad Noack — Structural Engineer

JLK Architects

Meg Kindelin — Historic Preservation Architect

rrrrrrrrrr

Lake Woodhine Bridge

Purpose of Tonight’s Meeting

1. Re-Introduce the Project
2. Review Current Condition of Bridge

3. Present Design Options

»  Bridge Structure

¢ Railings

»  Lane Width/Sidewalk
4. Limitations Imposed by Funding
5. Review Timeline — Next Steps

6. Highlight Preliminary Plans to Mitigate Construction
Impacts

7. Public Input on Design Options




12/13/2021

Loke Woodbine Bridge

THI CITY OF

THiRTERID tael

TUE COTY OF
LAKE FOREST

CUARTERLD 1000




Lake Woodbine Bridge

Preliminary Discussions to Date

» Historic Preservation Commission — Preliminary Review
o Directed further analysis of repair versus replacement option.

o After review of additional information, HPC supported replacement
of bridge.

o Consider a bridge design that is in keeping with the surrounding
historic character to the extent possible.

o Directed communication and coordination with stakeholders.
» State Historic Preservation Commission (SHPO)

o Directed that improvements be compatible with the surrounding
historic district

o Requested to review plans before final approval

&

Tas ciiv ot
LAKE FOREST

Lake Woodbine Bridge

Historic Features

« Site / Context
* Crossing the Ravine
* Historic character of neighborhood
* Design
* Traditional design, repetition of elements
* Triple Arch design
+ Balustrade
* Open - visual connection to Ravine
* low continuous element
* Material - Concrete
* Color - weathered grey
» Textured - not smooth modern look

TUF CITY OF
LAKE FOREST
SIRRTCatD (1nt

12/13/2021



Loke Woodbine Bridge

Design Challenges

« Site / Context
* SHPO requirements
¢ Design
* Modern Code - IDOT standards
» Traffic Barriers - Crash Standard requirements
* Width increasing
* Triple Arch Design
« Impact to Ravine during construction
* QOther construction Issues
* Balustrade
* Pedestrian heights and opening code requirements
* Manage concrete texture and color
Q‘ « Concrete or Metal expression, open or closed

..............

Loke Woodhine Biidge

Bridge History/Condition

* Constructed Circa 1912

» 3-span Closed Spandrel Arch

* One Vehicle Lane in Each Direction
* Sidewalk on West Side

* Repaired in 1978
o New spandrel walls
o New railings

MHECM OF
(LAKE FOREST (L

10

12/13/2021



Bridge Railing — Current Conditions

- -~
‘ "

..............

Lake Woodhine Bricge

Spandrel Walls — Current Conditions

uuuuuuuuuuuuuu

12/13/2021



12/13/2021

Lake Woodhine Bridge

Arch Barrels — Current Conditions

Lake Woodbtne Bridge




12/13/2021

Loke Woodhine Bridge

TN t i
‘Qj LN e aihteites| 7
N A 3

RN o N
r—lm""l === ¥ | - VI |
H ] e I 1|
] o
ko34
|
¢ i | ,
Lol T 1 |
T
| @ 5 SDENALE —mr| g
4" SIDEHALK gt e VAL - - i
RAUNG— - e RATLING RAH NG — B— j RELING
. R fr L -
o RCADWA ]‘ ROATWAY
o f 1] e ‘
A o 1
-, I
4
Jog
7
[___imy’ h
1

Q Existing Proposed

T o Bridge Deck Bridge Deck

Lake Woodbine Bridge

Bridge Structure Options

* Steel versus Concrete
* Type of Arch

xxxxxxxxxxxxxx




12/13/2021

Lake Woodhine Bridge

(I

T ] | [T

R | e e I |
3 1

FILLED PREFABRICATED CONCRETE ARCH

Bridge Option Explored — 3 Arch Concept

Pros Cons

Similar to Existing Bridge Design flaws — similar to existing bridge
New foundations cannot be constructed on top of
old foundations

Construction in ravine would be disruptive
Pre-Fabricated - limited sizes
e Cast-in-place time consuming to construct
LAKE FOREST

Siantrein ant

17

Lake Woodbine Bridge

.
N

i

{ 2

i TR
v ! A
! = i il A
oy 1 / %
AN ; - i
TR . [ ol
[ENERY N 1 Hoan
e N0 voan
NI 1 AN
e [ [

HAUNCHED STEEL PLATE GIRDER
Alternative 1
Pros: Cons:

No construction in ravine Steel construction instead of
Quickest to construct concrete
Arch similar to current bridge
Allows maximum light under bridge

e Structural elements can be inspected
LAKE FOREST

Steel requires periodic painting

CUARTERLD Tae1

18



(O O e e e
i

L st
i i ; T
i i i 7
i i i i
i . i [ i
i . . A i
| ] i - ! ]
; DS |
i ! e ! !
i i i i i
CONCRETE OFEN SPANDREL ARCH
Alternative 2
Pros: Cons:
Concrete Construction Some construction in the
Less construction in ravine ravine

Prefabrication would speed
construction

Arch similar to current bridge
Allows additional light under bridge

o= Structural elements can be inspected
LAKE FOREST

19

Lake Woodbine Bridge

IDOT Railing Requirements

Minimum Height 3 feet - 6 inches
4”/6” Maximum Opening
Must Meet Crash Test Standards
IDOT Has Final Approval Regardless of Funding Source

THE CITY OF
LAKE FOREST

CHALTCRCD 108

20

12/13/2021

10



Lake Woodhine Bridge

Railing Options

* Concrete with Metal Ornamentation
* All Concrete
* Open versus Closed

..............

[
w R y I
2 7 B, T,
E
—y T
NI

1

RIABLE|

2

Minimam 3'-6"

N —

-1

NEW PARAPET — N KEW CONCRETE
CURB & SIDEWALK

Railing Option 1

i Concrete Wall with Ornamental Metal

12/13/2021

11



12/13/2021

Lake Woodbtne Bridge

o oY o— ‘E;l.‘i"-.

- 34w 34
BAE, TYP.

O
/ CROWEL TiP.

3t el

e[ e iEe o (Gle e (Fie [ olfle(FiaFl nulnu—.nnn-l.-_gz"’l::‘| =1
i anniii i i LB
| £
= <o £
o=

«d
f .
f — R

— ! \ | j\

NEW PARAPET o \—NEW CONCRETE

CURB & SIDEWALK

Railing Option 2

Concrete Wall with Ornamental Metal

TN ciis OF
LAKE FOREST

CoanTINED 1dnt

23

take Woodbtne Bridge

end fe ead rait

Bock |_2-9" min.

window Spaces af i-4” center to center
of Abut.

Plers _and
Bent Pliosta|

2°-9" min. _,

Car efs. 2-#5 g{E) bars 2x -#7 o) bars

.

o DD@!ED‘@E"

2x -#5 (€} bars
Each Face (Boftom of roll)

:.:J
o

-#5 dz(E)—\ i
] [— - #5 dafE) bars ”"”
PA

7 Aluminum
sheeted const.

(Typ. betwn. windaws) |
| N ‘| ¥p- i Each Face (Top of rom [ 300 parapet | )

- #5 &iE)
at 8 ¢is,

l

Eﬂfﬂ

SPAN PILASTER

L’A b
cond
PIER PILASTER

INSIDE ELEVATION OF RAIL

Railing Option 3

THE CIiy OF
LAKE FOREST

SHARTOALD 1841

Concrete Wall With or Without Windows

24

12



Lake Woodbmne Bridge

Funding Basics

Estimated Cost of Project $2,840,000
Anticipated Federal Funds $2,000,000
Anticipated City Share $840,000

||||||||||

..............

Loke Woodbine Bridge

Mitigating Neighborhood
Impacts

Adhere to Established City Construction Hours
Identify and Sign Detour Routes
Specify Truck Routes
Designate Contractor Staging/Parking Areas
Early and Regular Communication with Residents

]

THE CrivooF
LAKE FOREST

nnnnnnnnnnnnnn

12/13/2021

13



Lake Woodbine Bridge

Next Steps

* Public Input on Bridge and Railing Options
* Prepare Recommendation to HPC
* HPC Public Hearing (Date TBD)

o Request Certificate of Appropriateness
* Pursue Construction Funding
* Phase | Design Coordination with IDOT
* Estimated Start of Construction 2024

nnnnnnnnnn

Lake Woodbmne Bridge

Contact Information

City Contact

Byron Kutz, P.E.
Superintendent of Engineering
City of Lake Forest
847-810-3555
kutzb@cityoflakeforest.com

2

TUE CITY OF
LAKE FOREST
SunaTeais 1het

28

12/13/2021

14



Loke Woodbine Bridge

Questions and Comments

Opportunity for Conversation
with City Staff and Consultants -
One on One

@

THP CITY OF
LAKE FOREST

29

rrrrrrrrrr

LAKE FOREST
SURRTERED 1oe1

30

12/13/2021

15



take Woodbine Bridge

Bull Pen Slides

Lake Woodhine Bridge

Inspection Results

* Current Rating is 25 out of 100

* Load restriction posted for trucks

« Superstructure Rated 4 — Poor — Advanced Deterioration
* Substructure Rated 4 - Poor— Advanced Deterioration

* Longitudinal cracks

* Delaminated concrete

* Visible and missing reinforcement bars

» Efflorescence present as most cracks

* Map cracking throughout

» Cracking and spalling due to freeze-thaw cycle of trapped water
» Evidence indicate alkali-silica reaction may be occurring

&

THE CITY 0Ff
LAKE FOREST
SHARTLRID el

32

12/13/2021

16



Lake Woodbme Bridge

Consideration of Repair

» Visible deterioration suggests chloride contamination and
alkali-silica reaction present
»  Decreases likelihood repairs would be effective long-term

» Strength of barrels dependent on condition of concrete
and reinforcement

« Detailed inspection and testing would be required
»  Requires removal of roadway and fill material to inspect tops of

barrels

» Barrel and pier repair would be widespread due to
advanced deterioration and missing/exposed
reinforcement

» Likely that the extent of the deterioration will result in little
salvage of the original concrete

WE CIIY OF

LAKE FOREST

33

Lake Woodbine Bridge

Consideration of Replacement

e Replacement is Lochner’s recommendation

«  Opportunity for a design tailored to the ravine and the
community

»  Opportunity for input from community before any
preferred elements are selected

TUE CiTy Of
LAKE FOREST
TuneTcate 1hes

34

12/13/2021

17



Lake Woodbine Bridge

Section 106 / Section 4(f) Documentation of
Adverse Effect

Historic Bridge Coordination
Removal of SN 049-6852 over Unnamed Ravine
Lake County, Illinois
January, 2013

THE CITY OF
Fi

CURATEAFO thei

July, 2013 the lllinois Historic
Preservation Agency concurred
that replacement of the bridge
would result in NO ADVERSE
EFFECT on historic properties
provided the following
conditions are met:

*  The new bridge design will
be compatible with the
surrounding Lake Forest
Historic District.

* SHPO is given the
opportunity to review and
approve the plans and
specifications prior to
initiation of construction
activities.

35

12/13/2021

1R



Lochner

L o c H N E R 225 West Washington Street

12th Floor
Chicago, IL 60606

T 312.372.3011
Memorandum F 312.372.5974
Date: 12/13/2021
To: Project File
By: Dave Shannon

Subject: 19374 Lake-Woodbine Bridge
Public Input and Information Meeting

A public input and information meeting was held on December 13, 2012 from 6:30pm to 8:00pm at the
Gorton Community Center in Lake Forest.

The meeting was advertised twice in the Lake County News-Sun, on 11/26/2021, 17 days before the
meeting and on 12/7/2021, 6 days before the meeting. See attached for Certificates of Publication.

Notification letters were also sent to 67 area residents and the Lake Forest Preservation Foundation.
See attached for a copy of the letter, a map that was attached for reference and the list of recipients of
the letter.

The meeting was also announced on the events calendar on the City of Lake Forest’s municipal website.

The purpose of the meeting was to re-introduce the project to the public, review the current condition
of the bridge, present various design options under consideration and solicit feedback.

The meeting was broadcast live via Zoom and five people attended virtually. Zoom attendees could
hear and see the presentation and were given the option of asking questions or commenting through
the Zoom platform.

A presentation of the project lasted approximately 30 minutes. Slides from the presentation are
attached.

An open question and answer session followed the presentation. All questions and comments were
verbal and no written comments were received. This portion of the meeting was structured to be a
working session and the name of the person asking of commenting was not recorded. The following s a
summary of the questions and comments. It is not intended to be a verbatim accounting of the
conversation.

Question/Comment: Wants the rail to look more like the balusters that are there now.



LOCHNER

Memorandum
Lake-Woodbine Bridge: Public Input and Information Meeting

12/13/2021

Response: A railing with balusters is not a standard IDOT railing and we would need to
investigate and coordinate a railing like the existing one with IDOT and the SHPO.

Question/Comment: Could some elements of the rail come from patterns or styles in the
neighborhood?

Response: The exhibits we showed with decorative embellishment can include details that we
design. The versions shown are just to show the portion of the rail that we can

customize.

Question/Comment: The Mayflower Bridge is a good example to follow.

Response: We appreciate the guidance and will investigate this bridge.

Question/Comment: Bridges in Glencoe may also be good examples.
Response: We can check on these bridges to see what they have constructed and see if we can
follow any of their process or design.

Question/Comment: Can we incorporate some iron details that are custom designed?
Response: The exhibits we showed with decorative embellishment can include details that we
design. The versions shown are just to show the portion of the rail that we can

customize.

Question/Comment: The National Trust for Historic Preservation may be a good source for
information.

Response: We appreciate the guidance and will investigate this source.

Question/Comment: Can any consideration be made since the bridge is used by a lot of
pedestrians?
Response: The design of the railing is based on vehicular safety concerns which is the primary

concern. We accommodate pedestrians by providing a taller railing, but reducing
design standards because a lot of pedestrians walk in the road is not feasible.

Question/Comment: Other bridges along Sheridan Road with similar design issues that have some
historic character. One built around 2000 has balusters and may be a good

example.
Response: We appreciate the guidance and will investigate those bridges.

Question/Comment: When is construction anticipated?
Response: Phase | is likely to last through 2022 and design will probably take another year.
Construction is therefore estimated to begin in 2024.



LOCHNER

Memorandum
Lake-Woodbine Bridge: Public Input and Information Meeting
12/13/2021

Question/Comment: Would like a similar railing, same as existing.

Response: The existing balusters appear to have a single reinforcement bar which does not
meet current code. We can investigate a similar design but it will need to meet
crash requirements. We are not aware of a similar standard IDOT design but we will
coordinate with them to determine if there is one, or if there is one from a different
state that they would accept.

Question/Comment: How much is the funding grant and how does the funding work?

Response: The federal grant will be about $2,000,000. Lake Forest will need to match at 80/20,
so the $840,000 is what the City will need to fund. That will include the design of
the bridge, construction and the inspection during construction.

Question/Comment: Suggested another meeting of this group before the project is presented to
the Historic Preservation Commission.

Response: Since this project is going through the NEP process, the public involvement process
needs to continue until the project stakeholders have been given an opportunity to
review the proposed project and provide comments, and those stakeholders
understand that their input has been considered to the extent practicable in the
development of the preferred alternative. The project teams wants to make sure
that the group assembled tonight is satisfied with the process before we make a
recommendation to the Historic Preseryation Commission. Another meeting is
therefore likely.

Question/Comment: Why is this bridge now a priority?

Response: As seen in the presentation, the bridge is in poor condition. The City has all of the
bridge’s regularly inspected and this bridge is now at the top of the list of need. The
City submits the inspection data to IDOT who then dictate any load postings that
need to be put in place. This bridge is already load-posted and the City is working to
make sure that bridge is replaced before any additional load restrictions are
necessary.

Question/Comment: Could some sense of scale be added to the exhibits for future meetings?

Response: Now that we have some directionon a desired railing type we can develop them to
a greater degree of detail, including some sort of view that would indicate scale.

The meeting adjourned at 8:00.



Public Meeting

February 16, 2022

THE CITY OF

LAKE FOREST

CHARTIRIND 18A

LOCHNER

T
By
m
4]
m
=
>
.
o
=
|
@)
Q
<
=
-
<
_|
_<
=
m
m
-
=
)
D
D
N
=}
no
no




Lake Woodbine Bridge

Lake Woodbine Bridge




Lake Woodbine Bridge

Bridge Location

2
:4 E=—. p——
5
‘: T
; i
i \ ;
LAKE FOREST , ;
‘!' ]
 SERER L FRRRRE S, | 1
| i !

. ouste
3“‘*_ &
- {
s 1 r
84
o wowkaiin o
i ' ax
¥ i .
H 1 L
& W Lokl £.3
2 —r
| v
1




Lake Woodbine Bridge

1. Our Task

* Satisfy “Purpose and Need”
* Provide serviceable roadway bridge at crossing
* Replace deteriorated structure

* Maintain the character of the bridge in new design
based on the existing historic bridge

*  Maintain continuity with historic area

* Maintain the experience of the bridge: the railings,
street approach, openness to ravine

* Beagoodsteward of the Ravine



Lake Woodbine Bridge

Section 106 / Section 4(f) Documentation of

Adverse Effect July, 2013 the Illinois Historic Preservation
Agency concurred that replacement of the
bridge would result in NO ADVERSE
EFFECT on historic properties provided the
following conditions are met:

e The new bridge is compatible with
surrounding Lake Forest Historic

District.
e SHPO to review and approve designs
Historic Bridge Coordination . - ¢ £
Removal of SN 049-6852 over Unnamed Ravine prior to construction.

Lake County, lllinois
January, 2013



Lake Woodbine Bridge

2. The Bridge and its Character

e Builtc. 1912

* 3-span closed spandrel arch

* 2 traffic lanes, sidewalk at west side

* Repaired 1978 : new spandrel walls & railings

* Traditional Vocabulary

* Open Balusters

* Concrete, color, texture

* Shallow Arches

* Visual Connection to the Ravine

* Orderly arrangement of panels relate
*  Bridge to the street
*  Upper level to structure below



Lake Woodbine Bridge




W
)
RS
<
)
v
=
<
o
Q
M
v
-
S
-]




Lake Woodbine Bridge




Lake Woodbine Bridge

3. The Bridge’s Conditions




Lake Woodbine Bridge

Foundations

e Silty loam to 45’
* Hard clay below 45’
* Foundations likely timber piles

* Not visible so condition unknown



Lake Woodbine Bridge

4. Bridge Analysis

7 guardrail

segments, typical
both sides




Lake Woodbine Bridge

East Side
| 1 I
i I |
| ] 1
1 2 3 : 4 : 5 6 : 7
| | i
| | |
| | |
N\ | 13 5 I NN R
10 10 M 8 S bod 10 10

View looking East




Lake Woodbine Bridge

West Side

-

Gt
tttytqf

7

mu '!

o |

N

7 ]

ﬁttt::ttt
h“ E P ""k'-'-r

|
I
I
I

—

M nﬁ

7 ::1:1!!1 r::%:%z:s
2 LA 8

View looking West

Aﬂm Lﬂ...._l _IL_.L

i‘.‘ ‘:‘!§Qs ;r’+ BEE

-

—- 10—

L!i_"



Lake Woodbine Bridge

Code Requirements

AASHTO crash rated GUARDRAIL

Min 42" tall T
Max 6” opening below 27 inches = e e
Max 8” opening above 27 inches




Lake Woodbine Bridge

5. Guardrail Options

O ption 1 Modify urn profile spacing to meet code

g 50"

126"
746" 14 equally spaced balusters .8 ‘ ‘

8 19
ey — - ¥
™ @ - i - Pl - . ” ; =
T . [T T e e, . - P s, . )
< - ¥ - * L - ) ® )
. u . " ¥ .
» = ~ ¢
=7« - T ry . "
P .
LI o
a . u
. . " 1 - o a I z? -
L B
. 7 z P
: F .- - r H “ £ “ N .. & * * « " il
- - L] G = e - » . - - F] » . - <«
< x i . - -« . # . - - r = =
> 4 o 4 - - + a 4 - * « $ 4 w
s * . * . .’ : . * N . . - * =
" » . # & - ¢, 2 r Ll « ——
- .\ . . L
4l 4 + o » b} ‘. L
a ! " e ad A — . " . " 4 . .
‘ F 3 - LF3
] . - N N " =,
o4 ‘e an s, ‘ s . L )
‘ - . . « - * 2 § -




Lake Woodbine Bridge

O pt|0 N 2 Renaissance profile provides alternative for tighter spacing

2 50

136"
2.0 21 equally spaced balusters 2.0




Lake Woaodbine Bridge

Opt|0n 3 Solid wall behind urn profile pilasters

26"

126"
7 equally spaced bollards

2"

L]

by

#

18
] - '3 < r
- = [ 4 « k - . . - B . * -4
[ . . . - - .
4 3 s . 2 2 < M - - B . T -
r3 T
1 A “
X - 4_ a ., ) » -
&, il . : N i A 4 e - ; & , 4 =
™ « « . ‘ . . . . . . - F )
N - . . <] . N 3 3 a
. -
o, &, O, P > 2
4 . . . . " : - — o,
A -
T - T ar ry - = - 0 = & -
r : i & 3 . a o ) . . o . 4,
) . - . T . " *
v . X . » .
. E - * . . & 2 L4
* ;2 N » R
. Y ’ 4 .
. ’ : ) . ‘ % .
. . _ P B ] -
- o
]
- a " -
» d ' P ¢ .

e 5.

g

1"61

38"

16




Lake Woodbine Bridge

Option 4 Wire mesh behind urn profiles

L 5.0

126"
26 7 equally spaced bollards 2

36




Lake Woodbine Bridge

6. Ravine Stewardship




3]
S)
2
S
@
w
S
S
=
S)
S
@
=
S
-l




Lake Woodbine Bridge

Ravine Impacts: 3 arch v single span

3 Arch Bridge

* 0Old footings must be avoided requiring new span configuration
* Accessing bottom of ravine will be disruptive

* May need rip-rap for pier protection

* Longer construction duration

Single Span Bridge

*  Opportunity to remove construction debris and restore habitat
continuity

*  More sunlight to promote natural growth under bridge

* Concern for erosion damage to bridge from storm events
eliminated

* Less potential for disruption of the ravine walls
*  Shorter construction duration



Lake Woodbine Bridge

6. Bridge Options
Bridge Option 1: Haunched Concrete Arch

| | |

-

1
1
T brre-
1 ll|||
i I’IIII
R 111
i l’llll
||‘ 1 |||
' 't T
i 't
i ! ey
R 'ty
oy | ! |1
] i



Lake Woodbine Bridge

Bridge Option 2: Open-Spandrel without Pedestals

. ‘ Abutment——
p— ¢ Abutment ——@ Structure ¢ !

1
| ] ]
l.i-l-ll.l.ll llllllll AYAVAVAVAVAFATA llllllll Alllllll AAAAAAAA AYAYAYAVAVAYAYA AVAVAVAVAVATAYA AYARARAYARARAPA




Lake Woodbine Bridge

Bridge Option 3: Open-Spandrel with Pedestals

¢ Abutment——-!

!—— ¢ Abutment ¢ Spandrel/ .L—'—“fi Structure l——-—— ¢ Spandrel/ l
‘ Pedestal | [ Pedestal [




Lake Woodbine Bridge

* Satisfy “Purpose and Need”
* Provide serviceable roadway bridge at crossing
* Replace deteriorated structure

* Maintain the character of the bridge in new design
based on the existing historic bridge

*  Maintain continuity with historic area

* Maintain the experience of the bridge: the railings,
street approach, openness to ravine

* Be agood steward of the Ravine



o,
S -
<
ol
Y
>
Q

Lake Woodbine Bridge




SHYPE
THE CITY OF
LAKE FOREST

CHARTERED 1861

Public Information Meeting, 2/16/2022
Questions, Comments and Responses
Topic: Lake/Woodbine Bridge

March 1, 2022

Dear Resident:

Thank you for attending, either in-person or virtually, the second public informational meeting for
the Lake-Woodbine Bridge project that was held on February 16, 2022. We appreciate your
interest in the project and value your contributions to the study process.

After the presentation, the open discussion included questions and comments about the
replacement bridge and railing as well as the Phase | process. The questions that we noted, with a

response, are as follows:

Question/Comment: What is the height of the woman shown on the slide?

Response: She is probably 5 feet —4 inches or so.

Question/Comment: How does the height of the proposed balusters compare to the height of the
existing balusters.

Response: The balusters themselves are probably slightly shorter because other elements of the
proposed rail are taller, like the base.

Question/Comment: What do you mean by precast?

Response: Precast is when they make bridge components somewhere else and bring them to the
project on a truck.

Question/Comment: Do the bridge options meet Army Corps standards.

Response: The Army Corps will be concerned with wetland impacts and the bridge standards are
IDOT’s. All of the options shown will likely meet IDOT criteria.

Question/Comment: Will Lake Forest be able to dictate the look and feel of the concrete?
Response: Yes, color and texture of the concrete will be specified.

Question/Comment: Is the arch in the spandrel bridge in multiple pieces?

Response: The arch will be cast in two pieces and it will only be wide enough to support the
bridge. There may be some overhang of the deck.

Question/Comment: Are the pedestals shown on the open-spandrel option columns or walls that extend
from side to side?

800 North Field Drive ® Lake Forest, Illinois 60045 ® (847) 234-2600



Response: They are walls that extend the width of the arch.

Question/Comment: Can the Option #1 railing be combined with the Option #3 bridge?

Response: Yes.
Question/Comment: Will the bottom of the ravine be changed?

Response: The bottom of the ravine will probably be returned to its pre-bridge condition with the
removal of the existing bridge and the construction debris around and under the

bridge.
Question/Comment: Will the pipe that you can see be left in place?
Response: That_ pipeisa sanitary sewer and we are going to avoid it.
Question/Comment: Wil the walkway on the bridge be maintained? Will it be on both sides? IS it ADA?

Response: The proposed bridge will include a sidewalk on the wes
widened to meet current standards.

widths be wide enough for cars to pass on the new bridge?

t side and it will be slightly

Question/Comment: Wil the lane
~ Response: Yes, the bridge deck
end.

Question/Comment: Do you have side-by-side current and proposed, especially Option 1? Option 1
balusters look squashed under too-thick rail. Why must rail bé so heavy but let's
look at this one more closely. Option 2 are bowling pins. Option 3 —no. Option4 -
no thanks.

eement on 2, 3 and 4 being undesirable. As previous stated ih_.

Response: We’re in agr 3 an
presentation, the top of the rail needs to be thick enough to be hold the railing

together.

Question/Comment: Bridge Options 1 and 2: Where is the 2-3-2 pattern?? Option 3 is 2-5-2. Why did
you switch from historic original? Is the area above the arch and under the decka

solid wall or is it open
Response: The span arrangement is being adjusted. We start with openness and continue until
we hit a resolution point. The arrangement of balusters may change but the rules stay
the same. The area above the arch and under the deck is open.

Question/Comment: The state is putting up $2M and the City is putting up $600k-$700k? Is that
correct? Are we obligated to find something between what the state is funding and
what we’d like to do aesthetically?

was a standard 1980’s bridge then cost

Response: That is correct but the City is at $800k. If this dar
efficiency would probably govern. We have a federal mandate to meet the historic

requirements and they are willing to fund thatso it shouldn’t be an issue. We also
would need to meet the IDOT requirements even if the City self-funded the project.
Question/Commént: Will the new bridge be strong enough to support large trucks?

Response: Yes, all three structure options shown will meet the load requirements of trucks.

800 North Field Drive @ Lake Forest, Illinois 60045 © (847) 234-2600

will be slightly wider to match the width of the roadwayonéach =



Question/Comment: Is anyone looking at water management in the ravine which is a MAJOR issue?

Response: Opening up the bridge should improve hydraulics. The ravine is not a floodplain or
floodway but it is an obvious way for water to get from the neighborhoods to the lake.
There is a pipe in the bottom of the ravine that was probably put there to reduce
erosion of the ravine walls. Our project should have no effect on the drainage at the
bottom of the ravine. We’'ll need a state permit, but it doesn’t look there’s currently an
issue. Nothing we’re going to do will make it worse. We'll carefully design the runoff
from the bridge as a routine part of a bridge. We can’t use scuppers anymore and we'll
use a system to get it to the bottom of the ravine. We do not plan to touch the existing

pipe.

Is the new bridge storm water runoff directed into the ravine? What is the current

practice?

Response: Yes. Water will be carried off the bridge and collected in a system that will safely
transfer the water to the bottom of the ravine.

Question/Comment: You described classicism but did not show us. Please show us what you are talking
about. What's the width of the deck compared to today? Can you show us photo of
detailing of today's arch? For example. | see a raised edge along the arch. By the
way, note that you listed nothing good, including "historic”, about current design
and everything good about replacing it with contemporary designs...Please don't
sell too hard.
Response: We don’t have any pictures of classic design but we do have diagrams. At the last
meeting we discussed “traditional look” and so didn’t dwell on it at this meeting. We
just showed pictures of how we’re replicating it. “Beaux Arts” is another name for a
classical look, like Wacker Drive in Chicago. The bridge deck will be slightly wider than
today's bridge.
t Storm water flows above ground from the west to the bridge , and then flows
underground into a corrugated steel pipe (3"}, which is deteriorating . Water
should run above ground continuously under the bridge and to the lake.

Question/Comment:

Question/Commen

Response: The pipe was installed for a reason, likely to reduce erosion. The ravine still gets rain
and runoff from the walls. The pipe only carries flow from upstream of the bridge and
plants at the bottom of the ravine don’t appear to be distressed or too dry. Removing
the pipe would only appear to increase the risk of erosion without any benefit.

on/Comment: Please confirm that the City of Lake Forest does not have an easement inthe

Questi
Ravine from the bridge to the lake .
Response: Lake Forest is not aware of any easements in the ravine.

Question/Comment: Because the property owners are responsible for the ravine east of the bridge, itis
critical that the City properly manages water flowing in the ravine from the west.

Response: The pipe isin the ravine for a reason and removal or maintenance of the pipe s not
part of this project.

e — . Taae « rOnAE @& rOATIN DA _VENN



ent: Width of bridge deck current and proposed? How does the proposed bridge rail

resolve into the properties to the southeast and northeast? Can you show
elevations of this detail?

Question/Comm

feet - 7 inches wide and the proposed bridge will be
ewalk is currently four feet wide and will be widened to
w the rail will tie in

Response: The existing bridge is about 19
closer to 21 feet wide. The sid
five feet. We're at the schematic level of detail and the details of ho

will be developed later in Phase II.

Question/Comment: Currently, storm water from the south and north side of the bridge isnot well
managed and literally just dumps the ravine. Is this being considered in the design

of the replacement bridge so storm water is properly managed from the south and
north ends of the bridge?

Response: One of the design issues for the hydraulics staff will be to dési
handled to meet IDOT and IDNR standards.
Question/Comment: S0 if bridge is wider, will it be placed further west?
Response: This is likely true but we’ll need to align the new bridge with the existing roadway at
end and keep it within the existing right of way.

gn the way runoff will be

Question/Comment: Does the City own land on each side of the bridge?

Response: Yes, the right of way extends on each side of the bridge.
ent: How long will the bridge be out of service during construction?

difficult to say at this point in the study. In general, the more restrictions that are
more expensive the project will be. We wantto make sure
ding the new bridge before removing the old bridge.

d up construction but it will probably

Question/Comm

Response: Itis
placed ona contractor, the

the contractor can begin buil
Precasting parts of the new bridge should spee
take four to six months.

tion/Comment: Be prepared to show examples of beaux arts examples at the next Historic

Ques
Preservation Commission meeting.

Response: Noted.

Question/Comment: Any issue in getting a 100" precast span trailered to Lake Road?

Response: Thisisa valid concern and we’ll study the truck route to make sure its adequate.

For more information, contact Byron Kutz, Superintendent of Engineering, City of Lake Forest,

kutzb@cityoflakeforest.com, or 847-81 0-3555.

Sincerely,

Byron Kute, PE.
Superintendent of Engineering



LAKE WOODBINE BRIDGE
STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Prepared for the City of Lake Forest

LOCHNER

September 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS
L INEPOTUCLION oevissceniicncsscsicesseorismrenserssarassssssessrssmseassassansnsnesavs snssanssessmssastansensasnessinssannssessnsssens smerns 1
2. Existing Bridge & Site CoONMitionS.....uicoccicencsrinnieesrenessesstssssiaseesinssmressssssenressessasanssessasenssesorsnres 1
A, Construction HISTOTY .......cooiiiiinmiiinnninircnsissinensissssnersssnssiinssonssesssesssesasssons srsraansen i
B. General INfOrmMation..........ccocrerirerieenrerienresssccessareccrnsessrsrssnssersassarssssssssseensseserenrine 1
C. ROAAWAY GEOMELIY....coicviiiricrncnniecsne s esrerace s esanes s se s sonssssostsenesioasnssassssss testannsene 1
D. Deck.....coinus TR N N R T ot R S T S SO oS St O 2
E. Sidewalk & RIINE ..oomcrirsiornsssereeeiiicrarerenesssssonsensessanessrosnesnsassasessssnsasaasesserossonssessas 2
F. Spandrel Walls.......... v imecnniiicniensiinsnesacsissnessonssreassosenssisssersonsasassessesnsnnsnens 3
G, Arch Barrel.......oiecircericorincccnsesmenrnesmrnens e N e e 3
H. PIEIS ciictscrnerssinrvesestsasssstosssstassessssonreravsssr ssossesanssssassnenes N T 4
I. Abutments & Wingwalls.........corueerne DR . - N SO YOO 4
J. FOUNAAtIONS.......ovimnnesciiiminnisciiossersssnnrsssssernsnsanns . OO 5
Ko RAVINE ..o ccrcnanerisesninnsar e rasasncssasssneserasossentos srassntosssrnsssssmrnssnssaesesansansessasn S
Lo UHHTES «.orescerenrinnrenicncsneccoisnnisssesinesssiiisesssassssnscssnsossrsresmsensasarsssssnsnssesesssssnsssarsssons 5
3. Consideration of Repair & REStOration. ........cceereeeecarerteicrarrrnaersevessesnsasossesssaneressesireravsssearsnsssssanes 5
4. Consideration of REPIGCEMENT ......cviiciicercrinanerrserionirorrereresrrssresssssseseesssssensensamstrisassssssrsssasenerens 6
5. CONCIUSIONS rteisiaasierececeranrarecerenretertoniasssmatnsissanesessessessesaransabtsnssessoes butaresssessesasrsvesrassessensensarannsssiosans 6
Resources
Appendix A — SIMS REPOIL......co ittt it e st san s ssass s ams sotm e msnmsmsam s ssesssnses s eamasasass A-1

Appendix B — Photos of EXIStiNG BridEe........cccceccrerniirimnnimicrrssnnessecssaascasiessrsersesssinersssissessssesses asaes B-1



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

1. Introduction

The existing bridge carrying Lake Road over a ravine at Woodbine Road in Lake Forest, IL has been slated
by the City of Lake Forest and the lllinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) for replacement. HW
Lochner is conducting a Phase [ Study for this work. This report is a summary of the current condition of
the bridge and the options for repair or replacement.

2. Existing Bridge & Site Conditions

/

Y
A. Construction History

The existing bridge is a three-span closed spandrel arch bridge. According to the IDOT
Structures Information Management System (SIMS) Master Structure Report, the bridge was
constructed around 1912 and repaired in 1978. No plans for either the original construction or
the repair are available. See Appendix A for the Master Structure Report.

B. General Information

The bridge length is approximately 106 feet long and comprises three spans. The center span is
approximately 40 feet face-to-face of piers, and the two outer spans are approximately 30 feet
each, face to face of pier & abutment. Out-to-out bridge width is 27.6’. The roadway is 17'-4”
feet wide gutter to gutter with 1'-7” curb and gutter sections on either side and a 4’-0”(+/-) foot
sidewalk on the west side of the street. There is no sidewalk on the east side of the street.
There is no skew. See Exhibits 2.B.1 and 2.8.2 for photos of the top view and east elevation of

the bridge.

The bridge is currently posted with a 22 ton limit for single vehicles, 29 tons for vehicles with 3
to 4 axles and 36 tons for vehicles with 5 or more axles.

C. Roadway Geometry

Lake Street is a two lane road {one lane in each direction) running north-south through a
residential neighborhood. The bridge carries Lake Street over a ravine which runs east-west.
Woodbine Road terminates into Lake Street from the west immediately south of the ravine. The

approach roadway width is 21 feet.

A sidewalk runs along the west side of Lake Street. An ornamental reinforced concrete
balustrade bridge rail is located behind the sidewalk on the bridge. South of the bridge the
sidewalk jogs westward and leads to a crosswalk crossing Woodbine Road. The south end of the
bridge rail terminates at the south end of the bridge and is unprotected. See Exhibit 2.C.1.

The north end of the west bridgé rail terminates at the north end of the bridge and is
unprotected. A wire vine trellis begins at the north terminus of the bridge rail and runs along
the top of the bridge wingwall northwest of the bridge and west of the sidewalk. North of the

1 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

bridge, the sidewalk jogs approximately 14 feet west to accommodate a parkway. See Exhibit
2.C.2.

The eastern bridge rail is a reinforced concrete ornamental balustrade rail mounted ona
variable-height short barrier wall. The bridge rail is located directly behind an 8” tall curb. The
rail terminates at the north and south ends of the bridge. A residential driveway is located
immediately south of the bridge on the east side. The driveway is bordered on its northby a
limestong-capped masonry wall. The wall curves around the corner of the driveway and
terminates into the south end of the east bridge rail. See Exhibit 2.C3.

Another residential driveway is located immediately north of the bridge on the east side. - The
driveway is bordered on its south by a concrete wall which curves southward and terminates
into the bridge rail. See Exhibit 2.C.4.

. Deck

The bridge deck listed in the SIMS report as a 6”-thick cast-in-place concrete deck. The surface
is a HMA overlay. The deck is not rated in the SIMS report, as it is nota structural element for
this bridge type. Some longitudinal and transverse cracking is present in the overlay, and there
is evidence of minor asphalt patching.

According to Table 2A of IDOT’s lllinois Highway Information System Structure Information and
Procedure Manual, the existing bridge deck width of approximately 18’ face to face of curbs
results in an appraisal rating of 2 (intolerable — high priority for replacement). A tolerable
minimum deck width for a replacement bridge would be the approach roadway width of 21",
and Table 2A lists a desirable minimum of 30"

Sidewalk & Railing
The west-side sidewalk is approximately 4'-0” wide behind a 1'-7 wide curb and gutter. The

sidewalk appears to be in good condition.

The bridge rail comprises a variable height solid concrete base, concrete balusters and a
concrete cap. The combined height of the balusters and cap is 2’-1”, and the height of base
varies with a minimum height of approximately 7”. The total height of the rail is approximately
278" minimum. Balusters are spaced at 16” on center. The bridge rails do not appear to be
original 1912 construction. It appears that the rails were built on top of new spandrel walls,
likely as a part of the 1978 repairs. See Exhibit 2.E.1.

The western balustrade is mounted on the sidewalk, and the eastern balustrade is located
behind the roadway curb. The condition of the rails varies. The top rail of the eastern
balustrade has isolated areas of delamination near its joints. Some balusters appear to be in
good condition, and others are severely damaged and have suffered significant section loss. See

Exhibit 2.E.2.

2 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

The existing sidewalk-mounted barrier height is sub-standard. IDOT standards and AASHTO
LRFD Section 13.8.1 state that the minimum height of a pedestrian railing shall be 42 inches.
Also, the existing baluster spacing on both railings exceeds current standards.

Spandrel Walls

The spandrel walls serve to restrain the granular fill below the sidewalk and roadway and above
the arch barrel. They also support the bridge rail. The visible sides of spandrel walls appear to
be in good condition. The walls do not appear to be the original 1912 construction. it appears
that the 1978 repairs included the saw-cutting of the edge of the arch barrels and piers and
replacement of these areas as well as the spandrel walls. See Exhibits 2.F.1 and 2.F.2.

Arch Barrel

The main superstructure element of the bridge is the barrel of the arch. In the SIMS report, the
superstructure is rated as a 4 {Poor Condition = Advanced Deterioration). The top of the barrel
is not visible as the arch is a filled, closed type. As such, its condition cannot be assessed by
visual inspection.

In the northern span, the soffit of the arch exhibits significant longitudinal cracking with visible
efflorescence. Longitudinal cracks appear to be located below the curb lines of the roadway and
along the lines of longitudinal reinforcement bars. Delaminated concrete is present throughout
the span with areas of visible reinforcement bars with significant section loss. Efflorescence is
present at most crack locations. Transverse cracks are present on the barrel approximately 4
feet above the north abutment bearing seat. See Exhibits 2.G.1 through 2.G.3. Similar
deterioration is present in the center and southern spans. See Exhibits 2.G.4 through 2.G.7.
Map cracking is present throughout.

The barrel-spandrel wall system acts as a tub containing granular fill. Qver time, water and salts
permeate through the pavement and pavement joints, through the fill and into the arch barrel.
Seepage of water and the presence of chloride contamination is evident in the cracking,
moisture, reinforcement corrosion and efflorescence present on the barrel soffit. Cracking and
spalling are likely the result of the freeze-thaw cycle of entrapped water.

The presence of map cracking, areas of pop-outs and spalling indicates that alkali-silica reaction
may also be occurring in the barrel concrete. Sampling and petrographic examination would be
required to confirm this.

Piers
The piers exhibit map cracking on the wall surfaces. Widespread areas of spalling and
delamination with corroded reinforcement and efflorescence are present near the pier-barrel

3 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

intersections and extend downward from there. Areas of pop-outs are present near the
connection to the arch barrel. There is evidence of prior patching of the piers. The pier surfaces
have some staining from the corrosion of drain pipes. There is an area of wash-out at the base
of the northern pier that appears to be the result of draining water from the superstructure.
The piers appear to be plumb. See Exhibits 2.H.1 through 2.H.4.

In the SIMS report, the substructure is rated as a 5 (Fair Condition — minor section loss, cracks).

Abutments & Wingwalls

Portions of the abutment walls are not visible, because the earth is graded upward toward the
abutments and intersects the abutments near the barrel intersection line. The exposed portions
of the abutment walls exhibit cracking and delamination similar to what is seen at the piers.

At the northwest corner of the bridge the northwest wing wall is built integral with the
abutment and arch barrel flares to the west at approximately 45 degrees from the roadway.
The base of the intersection of the wall and the north abutment is delaminated and exhibits
significant section loss. The wall has areas of pitting and several cracks. The wall appears
plumb.

At the southwest corner of the bridge, a cast-in-place concrete wall has been installed near the
mid-span and perpendicular to the south span. The wall retains the earth along Woodbine
Drive. The south span of the bridge extends south, past this wall to the south abutment. The
wall appears to be in good condition.

At the northeast corner a cast-in-place concrete wing wall extends perpendicular to the bridge
span, retaining the earth beneath the adjacent driveway. The wall has a large horizontal crack
extending most of its length approximately 2 feet below the top of the wall. The wall above the
crack has shifted forward, and a section of it has spalled, leaving a large hole. Diagonal surface
cracks with efflorescence are present in the lower half of the wall.

In the southeast quadrant, a cast-in-place concrete wing wall is built integral with the abutment
and arch barrel and extends to the southeast at approximately 45 degrees from the roadway. It
retains the ground adjacent to the residential driveway bou nded by the brick walls at grade
level. The wall has some horizontal cracking and appears to have been patched.

Foundations

Foundations are not visible. Soil borings taken in 2012 indicate silty clay and sandy loam to
depths of approximately 35’-40" below Lake Street elevation. A very stiff to hard clay layer is
present approximately 45’ below Lake Street. This suggests that the existing pier and abutment

4 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

foundations are likely are likely some type of deep foundation system. Based on the age of the
structure, the piles are most likely timber.

K. Ravine
The bridge crosses a ravine and drainage channel. The ravine has steep slopes covered by
mature trees on both sides of the bridge, and there is a well-defined channel leading to an
existing culvert on the west side of the bridge. On the east side, the channel is not well defined
but is instead flatter, drier, and more stable. The area under the bridge is sparsely vegetated and
consists of old fill material including rock rip-rap, concrete, and compacted clay soil.

The project site borders a residential area with homes and private property on all sides. A single
wetland was identified on site during a site investigation. The wetland consists of an overland
flow path for drainage at the bottom of the ravine, and conveys runoff from the surrounding
residential area. The wetland includes off-site properties east and west of the study site.
Drainage flows from west to east, and is directed toward the shoreline of Lake Michigan at the
outfall, located approximately 500 to 600 feet east of the bridge.

L. Utilities
There is an electric service line buried under the sidewalk on the west side of the bridge. A
water line and a sanitary sewer are both buried in the ravine on the west side of the bridge. The
sanitary sewer is located above grade directly adjacent to the center span of the bridge and is
supported by a series of short concrete piers. A storm sewer pipe from the south side of the
bridge is located under the south abutment and penetrates through the south pier. There also
appears to be a storm sewer outlet through the north abutment.

3. Consideration of Repair & Restoration
Prior to any repair of the arch barrel and piers, a detailed inspection and materials testing program
would be required to verify the causes of the present deterioration and to determine the strength of
the existing structure. The amount of concrete that is salvageable from a materials standpoint
depends on the chemical composition of the concrete samples. The nature of the visible
deterioration suggests that chloride contamination is widespread and alkali-silica reactivity is
present. This decreases the likelihood that repairs would be effective in the long run.

The strength of the superstructure is highly dependent on the local conditions of the barrel and
amount and condition of the reinforcement. In order to assess the capacity of the structure, a
detailed inspection of top and bottom surfaces of the barrel would be required, which would
necessitate the removal of the deck and fill material.

The arch barrel is severely deteriorated with visible areas of section loss in the reinforcement bars.
Repair areas would be widespread, and it is likely that the amount of repair would make salvage of
the barrel infeasible during construction.

5 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

4. Consideration of Replacement
Replacement of the bridge is recommended due to the advanced deterioration of the existing
structure. Replacement has been approved by IDOT and the State Historic Preservation Officer
(SHPO). A number of different bridge types are possible for the site. Considerations when selecting
a bridge type include structural efficiency and suitability for the site, construction cost, cost,
aesthetics & historical continuity, and future maintenance costs.

The existing bridge extends to approximately the northern curb line of Woodbine Road, which is
approximately 20 feet longer than desirable. Were a bridge similar in size to the existing to be built
in the same location, it would require the construction of retaining wall on the west to retain the
parkway of Woodbine Road, similar to the existing retaining wall. This is undesirable, as it blocks the
southern half of the south span, essentially making the bridge appear more like a two-span bridge
from the west and requiring more bridge and wall than needed. This is an inefficient use of
structure and adds costs to the project without clear benefit. In order to avoid this, the proposed
bridge could terminate approximately 20 feet north of the existing south abutment. if needed for
aesthetics or advantageous span arrangements, the north abutment could also be shifted slightly
north without affecting the adjacent driveway in the northeast guadrant.

Another item to consider is the location and condition of the existing piers and foundations.
Because the existing foundations are approximately 100 years old and are unknown in nature, it is
extremely unlikely that they would be suitabie for re-use in a new bridge. Locating proposed piers
in the same locations as the existing will result in interference with the existing foundation system.
A single-span bridge would avoid interference and minimize construction work in the ravine. For a
multi-span option, the piers should be focated to avoid the existing substructure, if possible.

The Lake Forest Preservation Foundation (LFPF) speculates that the architecture firm of Howard Van
Doren Shaw, which designed a number of historic residences in the area, may have had a part in the
bridge design. The bridge is not considered historic by the illinois Historic Preservation Agency, but
it is located in a National Register Historic District. The SHPO has also indicated that the new bridge
should be compatible in design with the surrounding historic district. As such, the LFPF has
expressed an interest in seeing a replacement in-kind. The City of Lake Forest has expressed an
interest in using an arch-type bridge or a bridge with an arched-shaped superstructure.

These considerations would be incorporated into the process of determining a proposed bridge type
should replacement be selected as the proposed option.

5. Conclusions
The advanced state of deterioration present in the existing bridge makes total replacement the only

feasible option. Several feasible bridge types are possible. A bridge type study would be conducted

6 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

to determine a proposed bridge type that satisfies the criteria discussed herein, current standards
and other criteria determined via public and municipal input.

7 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

RESOURCES

AASHTO. (2014). AASHTO LRFD Bridge Design Specifications, Seventh Edition. Washington D.C: American
Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials.

Bureau of Bridges and Structures Division of Highways. {2012). Bridge Manual. Springfield, IL: Hlinois
Department of Transportation.

Federal Highway Administration. (2012). Bridge Inspector’s Reference Manual, Volume 1 (FHWA
Publication No. FHWA NHI 12-049). Washington, D.C : United States Department of Transportation.

Lake Forest Preservation Foundation. (2015). Bridge Over Troubled Water. Preservation, 8(1), 3.

State of lllinois Office of Planning and Programing. (2007). lfinois Highway Information System Structure
Information and Procedure Manual. Springfield, IL: lllinois Department of Transportation.

Transportation Research Board. (1993). Recommended Procedures for the Safety Performance
Evaluation of Highway Features (NCHRP Report 350). Washington D.C : Ross, H.E., Sicking, D.L., Zimmer,
R.A., and Michie, J.D.

September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

APPENDIX A — SIMS REPORT

A-1 September, 2015



LI | L supien|| 1| ew awnoy

I I suiuen| 1] <z ooy

) Lt . L sisang ledpunpy||g| | sujuien| | 1| b ooy

puy ucpeubjsag pury uopeubisag

e BIBELIDRUN SION PORIRN L T B o R PIRC NON PO o
1swiasAg |ejaodg W] W] [ oN] :swxsis jejsedg tjesgen
1834 %o, pajeudisaq ul ]l w ] [ _3NON] el ¥onuy pajeusyseq uoo] 34j00] wifti ]34E8]  ciesmieAd o)
[ 1 AUDNA LAYV B1mng uil | ] wl_w | fees /[ 280¢]  IuDMA Lavv eimng wifoo | 3djoa] wiftl | 3ajee ‘eopap Wiy
ibua ssedig ] Wpbua sseddg 7] £V ‘1Euozyoy
[ [[] :Aep om] 10 suQ [ Ream-omi|[ 2] :Repm omy 10 suQ 081 | “Wpim Ampy xey
_ iSsuey O Joquiny ISAMYMON  jse3jnog 4 iseuer] Jo Jaquiny ISOMINMON  1S2INPN0S ,, STINVHVATD .,
‘abejuensod yoniy is3 | | b abejuensad yonug 13| || 2| :sse19 jeuogauny
| | JUNOJJA LOVY unY JSu | 1] 8661  smnoouA 1avv ung | 1s0y teosy uequn
_ | | iuoRdalq Aiojueau] | | iuopaaug Arojusauy | 153404 1| 060g] Aedpjuny
] ‘wejshs Ay ‘peN | (] [ SHN uoloN ‘wayshg Amy ‘geN | _SATAHS|[ 21 3s1a peoyjdiysumoy
] payun _ [ ] [A payun L iv|[6v0] .:Aunon Miojuaau
[ ] nuewsbag [ [ [] auewses [ 080c0]]  enoyuepy| seoueuspunddy
[ ] wopms I [ 000z] :uonms [azey[ 133418 IVdIDINNW] 4aN Bynoy Aey
ulo |idfo | :eepuspun jeopssp uy g suon|[ 0]  :eumponng sepun syiemepis
[00° ieajosopun jeisle] yy [A:04 [A:as [os |  :sseudomi aimanyg yoaq [ WHOS ATIWEN NOD did| [ ] ‘adA) samonag ya0q
| qN | Buissoin | SiSH|e0| :peoquBiseg s rezz| wier | aje | epnmybuoy g lor2z| wist | aler | epmpe
| UqN ¢ Buissosn {(ce2) | [os1 |  :Bupey Bupessdg [ ~ IILON|[ 0] oeatpul Auioed g0y
++0jU} BuissouD prOsjjRY,,, [o0z/8zi20 | :eveq Bupey peoq [ei2) |01 |  :Buney Aioysauy | ool | 6f /| Pyo|| 6  :uredAy espieng
SISATYNY ONILVH ON|| 5|  :Powsei sey | ~lodi|| g| :Ampwey _ suoN|| 0] /34| o] :edAippI uelpow
000 “YIPIM 18 Mamn | | ‘lepiojey JmInnSqng L [ edALmen z4 seq
000 JuBiey 1129 MeAng [ M j90)g jeimpongg [ Y, (] ‘ediupew 1 1eq
00 ‘edly Bupedp uaAnd [0 | :Auiiqisuodsoy Y, aeg pg L1/ (] :edAumen z& teay
0 S MeAng Jequiny | ] INS 215 1pg RN ] edAimen 1k seen
00 ipdaq |14 Basng L] :aje)s abpug Jeplog wwS0loLOIddy,,,
0 ae8p) Jap uopebiaey E 190UBOYIUBIS [EILOISIH _mﬂu suedg yoeosddy 30 49N m :suedg ujey Jo 1qN
0 He31D 10y uofeBlaeN  [oN | P aamonag [ ~ 13MANYAS G3THS Mo3a - HOuv|[ i1] /| 31FHONOD|[ }| :adAyjpew ueds uep
oN| 0 ‘lonuo) uonebey g _.||o_ N _l|o._ a _I.Io._ :ejbuy meyg — ALTVAIDINNW _IN {foualy Buploday
S | ST PPIMNIBMOPIS [BUON | uoRdaIQg MaYS | AVMEILYM[ 8] /] AVMHOH|[ ||  :spunjup sawmieg
00 | 2UBRY PP Miemopis | | 6N simdnyg jeae-ping | 3 | ALCIYAIDINGWY | 70| :Amgisuodsey e
9'lz WPM ¥oaq [BuoN | ieananns jej(esey ____SaEns|[ zi :diysumoy jump ﬁg_go :Qunog Jujew
01 P Aemproy ddy  [2102/80/20 iejeq ajepdm 8w “SHE NOHA NOLSTI MOVr WOU4 VNS IHL H3d SV Q3ONVHD SNLV.LS| ISUEWSY smvg
081 “WPIM Aempeoy 96pg | iseouidoy [ Liazri] mjegsmeg [ a3Lsod avol- N3d0|[ Z| :smejg abppg
0'0% ‘uedg Buojo ipbusy [ B :Ag paseidey T Syeway ebpug
6'66 ‘buo aBpug QLHSYY [SSA ©1q916113 daH 3NIGG00M 1V O 3NV :uogesoy | ANIAVY :poss0I) umeay
apbue emonng [i'ge :Bupey Aauejayyng | 44 NI QOOM INv| :eweN sbpug | SNETLa ‘papue) Aoy
el T O A A ! B LT S A e R T
b 32usia 2689-6r0 ‘Joquinpy ainjonig

~ (201-8) podey einyonyg soysey
weyshg Juewabeuely uoheuno) seanjonsg
zLozielz sereq uoyjepodsuel] jo juewiedaq siouny

} obegq



oy | nsogeloid 1oy | B 1

syleway
“_q.-i..|_ ysog Aempeoy i . [ — uumbcmn,vl._ _H_ :Ag suoq
(eoe | . qsepebpug [ SOIMIINOID O ALIOVYD GNVANYLSENS OL 3NA ININIOVIAT|[ Lg| DOM Jo adh)
sus SIBI[OQ U] $}SOT) ,,, |ger | npbuay | 266l oA ejRwRST IS0D

e eeAOIM pesRdNd (b1 & i B ta gt e B R Rl

[ NMONNNN[[ O] [ . _____NmONINNI[0] #Agyng

[ __00000000000000] [ 00000000000000]  i# Ad PIV pag

:IMHIEN aseg pooly g D :doag uedg saq poojd JJ [ ] wanjenuep

i(s49) © aseg pooy4 ﬂj.ll .H ‘3 MHeN uSjseq poold | [ i . ||_ [ - U LGN uonIBg

i (s42) D ubysaq pooyy | | ~ |m@ms | I = [ | :ajnoy

_ :Aauanbaid ubisag poojy paponisucIsy [ 8u6l) [ewbuo [ z161] 1YY

: o3 B L lon VRRRGUOIMaRORISHeY o e T

*papIod3y ejeq oIy :Ag sisfjeuy [z661i2zr20 | :eveq sisAjeuy

iS10QWON JeOR|Y BumoRIy :poyIe uogenjeay | ONLLOOS 3A08Y HNODS AFLVINOTvO| [ 8] :Buney

OO EID InoTS -

isxlewey uopoadsuy

~|[[] :Bubey esjesddy [ :Ag paysedsuy | [ ] :Ag paysadsuy
I __ T _ _ :poyjep uondadsuj _IJ :aanjeradwa |
__ __ I _ :Au0Bzre) uopsadsuy _ | -eveq uopoadsy
TriopiMoBRUIeI| lesigudd viuoRoadsui saremiapun ; (R RO A L
. ; _ VIN | N ‘uoRoejoid BiaeN s31d
3HL OL GIHOVLLV 38 OL wnm.mmﬂ_ﬁmqwm%%*wc .wwﬂmumwmﬂ,mﬁmﬁm i w_w__%mwwwwﬁ Slqedacoy 1oN| _ aigeideody jon|  aigerdssowion|| zzg] Aleipieng yagoddy
[ Ol Sd33N 3ais LSYIHINOS NO IVHANNYS ‘AF0VI43N. 38 0L AIINAIHOS J9a1g B . SplepugIS 23y Juseog| [ ] clesieaddy Bujjey 9Bpug
“Sylewiey uopsedsuj | VIHALRD WNAININ IN3SRd OL N3] [ 9  :uBjv Aempeoy yoeouddy
| | PEANEdISE] | viNELINO 318vHISId INISIUd OL HONIJNS [ ¢ :hoenbopy Aemssiem
| 1 OUZl|  iomLoeq ey | - _318vONddv1ON| [N  ielmoA-aduesespsepun
B NON| ]  :uomosioid oo | INIWAOVIAIM HO3 ALIMORIA HOIH - TTAVETTON [ g :Anawioag yoaq
A—— ] 3NON| [4]  :euesquapyoeq 30V1d NI 143138 OL AOVND3AY KNWINIW] [+ ‘uopenjeag jemngg
r P8R, IRg 1880 s AVTIIAO SNONIANLIE| [©] :4ng Bupesm 3290 | NOILVHOMIALIA HONIN - NOLLIANOD AYOLOVASILYS 9 ‘uogoajold pue jpuuey)
0 eupviyypmpeug | VIN|| N L TEVOITddV 1ON| | N “Maang
suol | gog] :z-g¢ 2dAy uopeujquioy | viN[[ N| | SMOVHO 'SSOT NOILDOIS MONIN - NOILIGNOD aivd] | § InpPnISIng
suoL | 6| ¢ odALuogeuiquoy | WIN[| N|  :peyoenvy sepiun NOILYHOIMI13a Q30NVAQY - NOILIANOD ¥00d! | + :aumonissadng
suoL [ Zz|  :sepiysanun elbuig [ ] | :(eweN)Aq dsu SHOWHD "SSOT1 NOILDIS HONIW - NOILIANOD WiV [ g sjosq

| T ALI/SONOYIN M|  :ewsN)Aqdsul g Beg s | :eumesodwsa) uonsadsu) [Liozrznt :e)eq uonoadsy)
. QuewioyljBsiRIddvIIO0RdSYY . ¢ S S S S s
suop | 9¢| :2-sg 8dA) uopeujquod suoy | zg| :se1vmeA nun sibuis N | ‘leioadg SOW |0 | :lesnuD samoesy
speo’] e mopg %01 >|| ¢ suol | 62| :i-sg odA) uopemquion | o mulLwivyompauo sow lo | :ewasepun son [rz |  :sian aunnoy

‘[oAa Bupsog abpug v SHUWIT Bunsog sjqemoily wnwyxey .. s SEAIBYU| UOPRdSUY,,,

sy L -, UORBIYIOLY, w_n:a&aa_w%wﬂnﬁwmwm@ . AT A | I .
301881 258960 :Jaqunpy aimyonyg

(£01-8) 110dey sumpanng Jaysey
waysAg juswabeuey uopeunojuy salnjonng
ZLOZIELIZ) 9veq uojjepiodsuel] jo juswipiedag siouyy

Z offieq



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

APPENDIX B — PHOTOS OF EXISTING BRIDGE

B-1 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.B.1  Top view

Exhibit 2.B.2  East elevation

B-2 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.C.1  Southwest corner of bridge (locking east)

Exhibit 2.C.2  Northwest corner of bridge {looking southwest)

B-3 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.C.3  Southeast corner of bridge (looking northeast)

Exhibit 2.C.4  Northeast corner of bridge (looking southeast)

B-4 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.€.1  Sidewatk and bridge rail on west side of deck

. .f,{,’-

it e PR L 20 _ SR

Exhibit 2.E.2  Curb and bridge rail on east side of deck

B-5 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.F.1  North pier elevation showing spandrel walls

Exhibit 2.F.2  South pier, west side showing spandrel wall repair joint

B-6 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.6.1  Soffit of north span, east side showing longitudinal cracking

Exhibit 2.G.2  Soffit of north span showing transverse cracking

B-7 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.G.3  Soffit of north span, west side showing longitudinal cracking & spalls

Exhibit 2.G.4  Soffit of center span, east side showing longitudinal cracking & spalls

B-8 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.G.5  Soffit of center span, west side showing longitudinal cracking

Exhibit 2.G.6  Soffit of center span showing longitudinal cracking & spalls

B-9 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.G.7  Soffit of south span, showing longitudinal cracking

Exhibit 2.H.1  North face of north pier, west side

B-10 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2H.2  North face of north pier

Exhibit 2.H.3  Barrel-to-pier joint at north face of north pier

B-11 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.H.4  South face of north pier

Exhibit 2.H.5  South face of narth pier, east side

B-12 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.H.6  North face of south pier, west side

Exhibit 2.H.7  North face of south pier, east side

B-13 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

__{ly-"'.

.

Exhibit 2.H.8  South face of south pier

T

Exhibit 2.1.1 North abutment

B-14 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.1.2 Southwest wingwall from below south span

T

Exhibit 2.1.3 Southwest wingwall

B-15 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.1.4 Northwest wingwall

Exhibit 2.1.5  Southeast wingwall

B-16 September, 2015



STRUCTURE ALTERNATIVES REPORT

Exhibit 2.1.6 Northeast wingwall

-

S

»‘d\\

Exhibit 2.H.1  North face of north pier, west side

B-17 September, 2015



Agenda Item 4
222 E. Onwentsia Road

Staff Report

Building Scale Summary
Vicinity Map

Air Photos

Materials Submitted by Petitioner
Application
Statement of Intent
Description of Exterior Materials
Existing Site Plan
Proposed Site Plan
South Elevation
Existing House
Proposed Addition
West Elevation
Existing House
Proposed Addition
North Elevation
Existing House
Proposed Addition
East Elevation
Existing House
Proposed Addition
Roof Plan
Building Sections
Proposed First Floor Plan
Proposed Second Floor Plan
Preliminary Site Grading Plan
Conceptual Landscape Plan
Proposed Planting List
Images of Existing Residence

Materials shown in italics are included in the Commission packet only. A complete copy of
the packet is available from the Community Development Department.

Historic Preservation Commission
March 16, 2022



THE CITY OF

LAKE FOREST

CHARTERED 1801

STAFF REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION

TO: Chaitman Gtinnell and members of the Historic Preservation Commission

DATE: March 16, 2022

FROM: Jennifer Baehr, Planner

SUBJECT: 222 E. Onwentsia Road — Two Story Addition and Site Plan Modifications
PROPERTY OWNERS PROPERTY LOCATION HISTORIC DISTRICTS
John and Kate Holland 222 E. Onwentsia Road Green Bay Road Local and
222 E. Onwentsia Road National Historic Districts
Lake Forest, I1. 60045

PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE
Karl Strassburger, designer

1004 W. Old Mill Road

Lake Forest, IL. 60045

SUMMARY OF THE PETITION

This is a request for a Certificate of Appropriateness for a two-story addition on the west side of the
existing residence. On the first floot, the addition will accommodate a two-car garage, family room
and open porch. The second floor of the addition will have a large game room. Proposed site plan
modifications include extension of the driveway and construction of an inground swimming pool,
terraces, and a pickleball court.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

The property is located on the notth side of Onwentsia Road, west of Green Bay Road. The
property is the front lot of the 2-lot Whalley Subdivision which was recorded in April 1990. The
property totals 1.77 actes. The existing home was built in 1957 and was designed by Ralph D.
Huszagh, who eatly in his career worked in partnership with architect Boyd Hill and designed many
residential high-rises in Chicago. After his partnership with Boyd Hill, Huszagh continued to
practice on his own and designed many single-family residences in Chicago and the surrounding
suburbs.

The home was originally built with a ptimary two-story mass and secondary wings on the east and
west sides. In 2007, the Historic Preservation Commission apptroved plans for additions and exterior
alterations to the home. The plans approved by the Commission included relocating the original
two-car garage that was on the east wing of the home to the northeast cotner of the property. The
original garage was repurposed into a wotkshop. The additions approved in 2007 included a
mudroom and four-car garage on the notth side of the home. As part of the 2007 approval, the
otiginal brick on the extetior of the primary mass of the home was replaced with stone.

STAFF EVALUATION

The statement of intent and supporting matetials submitted by the petitioner are included in the
Commissioners’ packets and provide detailed information. A summary of the project based on the
information provided by the petitioner is presented below.




Staff Report and Recommendation — 222 E. Onwentsia Road Page 2 0f 6
Match 16, 2022

Proposed Addition

As noted above, the petitioner is proposing a two-story addition on the west side of the existing
residence that will house a two-cat garage, family room and game room. The new two-car garage
faces west. On the north side of the addition, an open potrch is proposed. The addition will be
connected to the home by a single-stoty element on the south side of the existing west wing of the
house. The addition is designed to match the style of the existing home and incorporates matching
exterior materials, architectural detailing, and roof styles.

Site Plan

With the proposed addition the building footprint will significantly increase by approximately 2,273
square feet, equal to 52.5 petcent of the footprint of the existing home. The existing curb cut,
driveway and motor coutt at the front of the home will be maintained. A new dtiveway is proposed
to come off the existing driveway and extend across the front yard to the west side of the addition,
to provide access to the new two-car garage. The existing three car garage and shed-like structure on
the east side of the home will remain.

The existing patio at the rear of the home and sports court in the rear yard will be removed. New
stone terraces and an inground swimming pool are proposed on the rear of the home. A new
outdoor kitchen and firepit are also proposed in the tear yard and a pickleball court with an
impervious sutface is proposed in the northwest corner of the site.

The site plan and information submitted by the petitioner shows that the amount of impervious
surface on the site will increase from 16,027 squate feet, equal to 20.7 percent of the lot area, to
25,418 square feet, equal to 32.9 percent of the lot area. The building footptint incteases from 5,017
square feet to 7,290 square feet, including the square footage of the existing workshop structure.
The paved surfaces, including the driveway, motor coutt, pool, pickle ball court, and terrace
increases from 11,010 squate feet to 18,128 square feet.

Consideration should be given to alternate site plans in an effort to explore opportunities to reduce
the significant increase in impetvious sutface that results from the currently proposed plan. Because
of the location of the proposed two car garage, the new driveway extends across the front yard, east
to west, and wraps around to the west side of the house. A total of 3,314 square feet of new
driveway surface is proposed. The front yard today has a very pastoral-like quality which will be
impacted by the new driveway that is proposed.

The Commission recently approved construction of a new residence north of this property at 210 E.
Onwentsia Road. During the Commission’s teview of the new residence concerns were raised with
respect to the significant amount of impervious surface. For reference, the new residence to the
north has a total of 23,130 square feet of impervious sutface, or 30 percent of the lot area. This total
includes the long driveway that extends approximately 320 feet from Onwentsia Road to access the
site.

The property owners to the west of both the property in this petition and the 210 E. Onwentsia
Road property have expressed concetn about drainage impacts due to the significant increase in
impervious surface and the grade change that occurs in this area. The neighboring property to the
west is downstream from the 210 and 222 E. Onwentsia Road properties.



Staff Report and Recommendation — 222 E. Onwentsia Road Page 3 of 6
March 16, 2022

Findings
A staff review of the applicable standatds in the City Code is provided below. Findings in response
to the standards are offered for the Commission’s consideration.

Standard 1 — Height.

This standard is met. The surrounding neighborhood teflects one and a half, two, and two and a half
story homes. The existing residence is 27 feet and 11 inches tall. The proposed addition is 22 feet
and 3 inches tall as measured from the lowest point of existing grade adjacent to the addition to the
tallest roof peak. The maximum height allowed for this property is 40 feet.

Standard 2 — Proportion of Front Fagade.

This standard is generally met. Although the south elevation of the existing home faces the street,
the front of the home is oriented to face east. The street facing elevation of the existing home
presents the shorter side of the primary mass with the smaller wings set further north at the rear of
the home. The addition, like the existing home, is oriented to present the shorter side toward the
street. With the addition proposed on the west side of the site, the home will present a more
tambling appearance across the property and will be a total length of 138 feet along the south
elevation, facing the street. The proposed addition is set forward of the existing home by
approximately 6.5 feet. The primary mass of the existing home may be lost since it will be part of a
very long street facing fagade

Standatd 3 — Proportion of Openings.

This standard is met. The existing house featutes a combination of casement and double hung
windows. The existing home generally presents vertically otiented openings with some square shape
openings in the dormers. The proposed addition like the existing home presents both casement and
double hung windows with vettical proportions and square windows in the dormers on the east and
west elevations.

Standard 4 — Rhythm of Solids to Voids.

This standard is generally met. There is mostly a consistent thythm of solids to voids on the existing
home although the bay windows on the north and south elevations and the garden room on the rear
of the house present larger expanses of openings than found in other areas of the home. The
proposed addition is mostly consistent with the existing rhythm of solids to voids found on the
existing home although a large expanse of stacked openings is proposed on the west elevation of the
addition that is not consistent with the existing rhythm of solids to voids.

» Staff tecommends further study of the west elevation of the addition to design openings that
follow the rhythm of solids to voids found on the existing home.

Standard 5 — Spacing on the Street.

This standard is not met. Currently, the west side of the property is a large open area. The addition
on the west side of the residence, along with the driveway extending across the front yard, will
change the cutrent sense of expansiveness and pastotal like character of the site.

The surrounding homes are set far back from the street so the proposed addition may not visually
create a strong perception of a difference in the spacing along the street to the casual passerby
however, there will likely be a visible change in the openness of the site as perceived from the street.



Staff Report and Recommendation — 222 E. Onwentsia Road Page 4 of 6
March 16, 2022

Standard 6 — Rhythm of Entrance Porches.
This standard is not applicable. The entrance to the home is not proposed to change.

Standard 7 — Relationship of Materials and Texture.

This standard is met. The extetior is comprised of high quality and natural materials that match the
existing home. The extetior walls of the addition will be a combination of stone and wood siding,
Slate is proposed for the main roof forms and standing seam copper is proposed for the low-pitch
roof forms. Aluminum clad wood windows, with interior and exterior muntin bars are proposed.
Wood is proposed for the trim, takeboatds, fascia and soffits Stone chimneys with clay pots ate
proposed. Copper gutters and downspouts are proposed. Hardscape on the site includes an asphalt
drive and stone tertaces on the rear of the home.

Standard 8 — Roof Shapes.
This standard is met. The addition presents a combination of gambrel and gable roof forms, and
shed style dormers, consistent with the existing home.

Standard 9 — Walls of Continuity.

This standard is met. The architectural style, extetior matetials, and architectural detailing of the
addition is consistent with the existing residence presenting a cohesive design across the elevations
of the home.

Standard 10 — Scale.

This standard is met. The residence as presented complies with the building scale requirements.
Based on the lot size, a tesidence of up to 7,984 square feet is permitted on the site. In addition, a
garage of up to 800 square feet is permitted along with up to 798 square feet of design elements. The
proposed addition totals 1,338 square feet. The new garage totals 564 square feet and there are 326
squate feet of new design elements proposed. In total, the home, with the addition, is 24 square feet
below the allowable square footage, equal to 0.3 percent of the allowable square footage.

Standard 11 — Directional Exptession of Front Elevation.

This standard is not met. The primary gambrel form is the focal point of the existing home and
presents a vertical expression as viewed from the street. The existing wings on the east and west
sides of the home are set back from the projecting gambrel form and have a lower profile,
presenting a hieratchy amongst the different masses of the home.

The proposed addition as noted above slightly projects forward of the ptimary gambrel form and
elongates the front elevation to the west, creating a tambling seties of tnasses that appear to draw
attention away from the ptrimary gambrel form on the front elevation.

Standard 12 — Preservation of Historic Material.
This standard is not applicable to this petition. The proposed addition does not impact any unique
ot defining features of the existing home.

Standard 13 — Protection of Natural Resources.

This standard can be met. The project will require the removal of three trees to accommodate the
proposed additions and hardscape. The threc trees proposed for removal include two Crabapple and
one Linden tree. The trees are all rated in fair condition. Based on the species, size and condition of
the trees proposed for removal a total of 16 replacement inches is required.



Staff Report and Recommendation — 222 E. Onwentsia Road Page 5 0of 6
March 16, 2022

The conceptual landscape plan that was provided by the petitioner reflects new plantings around the
addition and in the rear yard around the proposed hardscape. The new plantings include Maple,
Redbud, and Pear trees as well as a vatiety of deciduous and evergreen shrubs. Based on the cutrent
landscape plan the total amount of replacement inches is satisfied. As the project takes shape,
additional plantings may be necessary to soften the large area of driveway proposed in the front
yard.

As noted above, the extended driveway interrupts an expansive front yard that appears prairie-like in
character. Careful consideration of limiting the width of the driveway and use of natural appeating
hardscape materials will help to preserve the natural appearance of the property from the streetscape
and for those approaching the house.

Standard 14 — Compatibility.

This standard is generally met. The style, exterior materials and architectural detailing of the addition
is compatible with the exiting home, however the scale of the addition in relation to the existing
home and the ptoposed site plan modifications will alter the character of the property.

Standard 15 — Repair to deteriorated features.
This standatd is not applicable to this request.

Standard 16 — Surface cleaning.
This standard is not applicable to this request.

Standard 17 — Integrity of historic property.

This standard is not fully met. The proposed addition reflects a traditional architectural style with
high quality natural materials consistent with the existing home and surrounding properties. As
noted above, the propetty today presents a very open and pastoral like character, however given the
significant inctease in impervious surface and building footprint the site will likely take on a different

character.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Public notice of this petition was ptovided in accordance with the City requirements and practices.
Notice was mailed by the Community Development Department to surrounding property ownets
and the agenda for this meeting was posted at various public locations. As of the date of this writing,
no cotrespondence was received regarding this request.

RECOMMENDATION

» Continue consideration of the petition with direction.
OR

» Grant a Certificate of Apptopriateness approving the two-story addition and site plan
modifications based on the findings detailed in the staff report with modifications based on
the discussion and deliberation of the Commission to support the approval. The following
conditions of approval are recommended.



Staff Report and Recommendation — 222 E. Onwentsia Road Page 6 of 6
March 16, 2022

1. Conduct further study of the site plan and reduce the amount of impervious surface.

2. Refine the west elevation of the addition to present openings that follow the rhythm of
solids to voids found on the existing home.

3. Plans submitted for permit must reflect the project as presented to the Commission with the
refinements noted above. If any furthet modifications are made to the plans in response to
Commission direction ot as a result of design development, plans clearly detailing the areas
of change must be submitted at the time of submission for permit, along with the plans
originally presented to the Commission and will be subject to review by staff, in consultation
with the Chairman as approptiate, to verify that the plans are consistent with the intent of
the Commission and the approvals granted.

4. Priot to the issuance of a building permit, a plan to protect trees and vegetation on and off
the site and trees and vegetation identified for preservation during construction must be
submitted and will be subject to review and approval by the City’s Certified Arborist.

5. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a detailed, landscape plan shall be submitted and
will be subject to review and approval by the City’s Certified Arborist. The plan shall provide
for the required 16 replacement inches on site. If during construction, additional ttees on the
site are compromised in the opinion of the City’s Certified Arborist, additional replacement
inches or payment in lieu of on site planting may be required. As the project takes shape,
additional plantings may be necessary to soften the appearance of the driveway in the front
yard.

6. Details of exterior lighting shall be submitted with the plans submitted for permit. Cut
sheets for all light fixtures shall be provided and all fixtures, except those lluminated by natural
gas at low light levels, shall direct light down and the source of the light shall be fully shielded
from view. All exterior lights shall be set on automatic timers to go off no later than 11 p.m.
except for security motion detector lights. All exterior lighting shall be sensitive to the
impacts on the public patk and the wood land across the street and the dark sky character of
the neighborhood.

7. Priot to the issuance of a building permit, a plan for construction parking and materials’
staging shall be submitted to the City for review and will be subject to City approval in an
effort to minimize impacts on the surrounding neighborhood. No on street parking of
construction vehicles or contractor’s vehicles is permitted due to the narrow width of the
street.



THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST BUILDING REVIEW BOARD -- BUILDING SCALE INFORMATION SHEET

Address 222 E. Onwentsia Road Owner(s) John and Kate Holland
Architect Karl Strassburger, designer Reviewed by: Jen Baehr

Date 3/16/2022

Lot Area 77300 sq. ft.

Square Footage of Existing Residence:

1st floor 3194 + 2nd floor 1816 + 3rd floor 0 = 5010 sq. ft.

Design Element Allowance = 798 sq. ft.

Total Existing Design Elements = 560 sq. ft. Excess = 0 sq.ft.

Existing Garage 1054 sf actual ; 800 sf allowance B 254 sq. ft.

Garage Width 25'-10" _ ft. may not exceed 24’ in width on lots

18,900 sf or less in size.

Basement Area = 0 sq. ft.

Accessory buildings = 706 sq. ft.
Total Square Footage of Existing Residence To Remain: = 5970 sq. ft.

Square Footage of Proposed Additions:

1st floor 1338 + 2nd floor 0 + 3rd floor 0 = 1338 sq. ft.
New Garage Area 564 sq.ft. Excess = 564 sq. ft.
New Design Elements 326 sq.ft. Excess = 88 sq.ft
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE = 7960 sq. ft.
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE ALLOWED = 7984 sq. ft.
DIFFERENTIAL = -24 sq.ft. _NET RESULT:

Under Maximum
24 sq.ft. is

0.3% under the
Allowable Height: 40 ft. Actual Height 27" - 11" (existing house)  22'-3" (addition) Max. allowed

DESIGN ELEMENT EXEMPTIONS (Existing & Proposed)

Design Element Allowance: 798 sq. ft.
Front & Side Porches = 702 sq. ft.

Rear & Side Screen Porches = 0 sq. ft.
Covered Entries = 0 sq. ft.

Portico = 0 sq. ft.

Porte-Cochere = 0 sq. ft.

Breezeway = 0 sq. ft.

Pergolas = 0 sq. ft.

Individual Dormers = 171 sq. ft.

Bay Windows = 13 sq. ft.

=+

Total Actual Design Elements = 886 sq. Excess Design Elements = 88 sq. ft.










Area of Request

S
@
o
X
o
&
C
)
2
c
)
L
~
o
N




31

B [y} T‘\- ;‘
LAKE FOREST
e

EDNCR

THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION APPLICATION FOR A
CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

PROJECT ADDRESS___ % €. OnvvendT9IA 0.
APPLICATION TYPE
RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS COMMERCIAL PROJECTS .
[] New Residence [] Demolition Complete [0 New Building [} Landscape/Parling
[] New Accessory Building [ Demolition Partial [] Addition/Alteration [0 Lighting
Addition/Alteration [] Height Variance [0 Height Variance [[] Signage or Awnings !
[] Building Scale Variance 0 Other [ Other O !

HisTORIC DISTRICT OR LOCAL LANDMARK (leave blank if unknown)

[0 East Lake Forest District
o Local Landmark Property

or District 3 Other

Green Bay Road District

[ Vine/Qakwood/Green Bay Road District {

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION

dounv P e HMOWkNY

Ouwwner of Property

,mii‘p PP WENTSIA
Ouner's Streel Address (may dress (may be dgfermt  from jrra_]ect address)

ViKe YU e

“City, State and Zip Cade » Code

b3p- 919~ 4341

u'

PR bedal

ARCHITECT/BUILDER INFORMATION |

\[_A 14 )\\L-{\“)d Vl“’ ! E

" Name and Title of Person Presenting Project

C”fﬁf\ﬁ‘}-}’t"/lb’}l » KSSQC

"Name of Firm

k\)b"% W

Street Address

Wpe 0297 \L-

A A U

boodgs

Phone Number Far Number

Thok ) @ Tcdet

Email Address

L00M

City, State and Zip Code

_BAT-pd -0

~ Phone Number

ekt ks pupnEn 3 HITMAIL C U!vdy(

E mazl Address
un T Sl HL@%»;—*-

Fax Number

Oruner’s Signature

Representative’s Signature (Architect/ I%ulder'

The staff report is available the Friday before the meeting, after 8:00pm.

Please email a copy of the staff report

Oowner [ REPRESENTATIVE

] Please fax a capy of the staff report

O OownER O REPRESENTATIVE =

| I will pick up a copy of the staffreport at
| the Community Development Department

C1OownER L1 REPRESENTATIVE




February 8, 2022

City of Lake Forest

Historic Preservation Commission
800 Field Drive

Lake Forest, IL. 60045

Submitted by:

Strassburger and Associates Inc.
1004 W, Old Mill Road

Lake Forest, Illinois 60045

RE: Holland Residence
222 E. Onwentsia Road, Lake Forest, IL.60045

We are submitting for a certificate of appropriateness for the proposed addition at 222 E. Onwentsia
Road, namely the Holland Residence. The property is located within the Green Bay Road Historic
District.

Currently the home has 4 bedrooms and a 3-car garage with no family room. We are proposing an
addition to the west side of the property connecting thru the existing stair foyer to a family room/screen
porch and a 2-car garage. We are not planning to change any living areas of the existing home as they are
adequate for the owners needs. The primary reason for the addition is to have a family room/screen porch
facing north (rear yard) where their main activities are located.

Regarding the historical significance of the residence, the home was designed in 1957 by Architect Ralph
D. Huszagh and associate John DeMuth for Warren Davis. The Huszagh name is associated with a few
smaller hotels in Chicago built in the 1920’s, but no association with other significant residences could be
found. This residence would have been at the end of Huszagh’s career, and it may be that John DeMuth
may have been the designer.

The home was built in an era of post war construction when architecturally significant buildings were
somewhat rare. Overall, the composition of the main gambrel and gambrel roofs are the primary element,
and we plan on maintaining this architectural feature throughout the design. The “Federal inspired Dutch
Colonial” was the foundation for its architectural design, but it was the renovation by Architect Dave
Poulton of the Poulton Design Group in 2007 that transformed its original design into its present
meticulously detailed architectural statement. Modest detailing was replaced with improvements with a
higher level of integrity. It is our goal to carry the same level of detailing throughout the composition of
the addition and maintain height, proportion, and rhythm of elements consistent with its present design.
Exterior materials/textures and architectural details will be matched to existing conditions.

The existing residence is located predominantly towards the east side of the property. This exposes an
area conducive to a proposed addition. From the street it frames the house more centered on the lot.




Since the residence is set back significantly from the street, the addition to the west balances the massing
in an overall sense and is consistent with proportion and rhythm of the existing fagade. The proposed
addition is consistent with all the 14 Historic Preservation Ordinance Standards. The proposed addition is
within the boundaries of the R-4 zoning ordinance and all building codes, including setbacks and building

scale.

In summary, the addition will follow the proportions and rhythm of the existing fagade while presenting a
secondary element to the predominant stone gambrel centered on the lot. Along with a new landscape
plan to complement the existing vegetation and the fact that the house is set back a great distance from the
street, the proposed addition will not adversely impact the streetscape. No existing trees will be removed
or effected by the addition. It is our opinion that the addition will improve the character of the residence
and grounds as they relate to the street.

Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

W A Aﬁ’fﬂbf‘r

Karl Strassburger '
Strassburger and Associates
President



February 8, 2022

City of Lake Forest

Historic Preservation Commission
800 Field Drive

Lake Forest, IL. 60045

Submitted by:

Strassburger and Associates Inc.
1004 W. Old Mill Road

Lake Forest, Illinois 60045

RE: Holland Residence
222 E. Onwentsia Road, Lake Forest, IL.60045

RESPONSES TO:
Standards For Review of Applications for Certificates of Appropriateness.
Evaluation of Criteria in the Historic Preservation Ordinance (14 Standards).

1. Height. Height shall be visually compatible with properties, structures, sites, public
ways, objects, and places to which it is visibly related.

The addition does not exceed the maximum height requirement for the property. The main

existing gambrel element is 25°-6 above grade. The corridor addition along the existing

living room does not exceed 10 high and increases to 14°-6 at the garden vestibule roof. The

main portion of addition in the N/S direction steps lower in grade 1°-0 and does not exceed

the 19°-0 height line. The west addition is to be lower and secondary to the main center

gambrel.

2. Proportion of front facade. The relationship of the width to the height of the front
elevation shall be visually compatible with properties, structures, sites, public ways,
objects, and places to which it is visually related.

The proportion of the front fagade will change with this request. The existing fagade will
remain unchanged and there will be an addition to the west. The corridor hallway remains
close in scale as it parallels the existing living room. The existing living room roof remains
the same. The main addition steps down in mass to the west in relation to the main gambrel
as does the existing elements east of the main gambrel. The addition will help balance the
proportion east and west of the main gambrel center element.

3. Proportion of openings. The relationship of the width to height of windows and
doors shall be visually compatible with properties, structures, sites, public ways,
objects, and places to which the building is visually related.

We are proposing to maich all existing window and door proportions on the new addition as



are found on the existing structure.

4. Rhythm of solids to voids in front facades. The relationship of solids to voids in the
front facade of a structure shall be visually compatible with properties, structures,
sites, public ways, objects, and places to which it is visually related.

The existing front facade will remain unchanged. The west addition will follow existing

clements such as dormers and roofs. The low corridor element allows roof separation

between the existing living room roof and the proposed gable roof of the new addition.

Similarly, there is a void separation between the east garage and detached out building. The

thythm of solids to voids is compatible with surrounding properties to which it is visually

related.

5. Rhythm of spacing and structures on streets. The relationship of a structure or
object to the open space between it and adjoining structures or objects shall be
visually compatible with the properties, structures, sites, public ways, objects, and
places to which it is visually related.

The proposed addition is consistent in terms of design and style with that of the existing house.
The house is set back greatly from the street and the proportions of the addition do not negatively
affect the thythm of spacing along the street. The house is located predominantly to the east and
the west addition will improve the centering around the existing main gambrel.

6. Rhythm of entrance porches, storefront recesses, and other projections. The
relationship of entrances and other projections to sidewalks shall be visually
compatible with the properties, structures, sites, public ways, objects, and places to
which it is visually related.

The existing main entry and porch is to remain unchanged. The west corridor to the new

addition will have a front access entry (garden vestibule) to provide a more transparent flow

from the front and rear yards. The decorative entry is compatible with existing design and is
meant to be lower in scale and a secondary access.

7. Relationship of materials and texture. The relationship of the materials and texture
of the facade shall be visually compatible with the predominant materials used in
the structures to which it is visually related.

The addition in its entirety will follow all aspects of the materials and textures of the existing

structure. Existing stone will come from the same quarry and match in color and size

accordingly. Proposed wood siding will match a combination of existing cedar beveled
siding and Dutch lap siding base. Window and door trim details will match existing.

Existing soffit, fascia, rake and exterior detailing will be matched in the proposed addition.

The one picture window at the living room south elevation to be removed will be reused at

the same south elevation corridor.

8. Roof shapes. The roof shape of a structure shall be visually compatible with the
structures to which it is visually related.
The proposed roof forms of the addition are visually compatible with the existing structure.



Maintaining the existing residence, the main gambrel is the focus. The new addition will
step down in mass like the east side in a gable design. Incorporating a gambrel roof element
without competing with the main south elevation gambrel was an important design goal. We
designed an east/west facing gambrel to break up the long gable ridge going north/south. A
partial east facing gambrel enhances the architectural character of the Dutch colonial style
without being a dominate element. The composition of new roof forms is compatible with
the existing structure.

9. Walls of continuity. Facades and property and site structures, such as masonry
walls, fences, and landscape masses, shall, when it is a characteristic of the area,
form cohesive walls of enclosure along a street, to ensure visual compatibility with
the properties, structures, sites, public ways, objects, and places to which they are
virtually related.

This standard is not applicable to this request.

10. Scale of a structure. The size and mass of structures in relation to open spaces,
windows, door openings, porches, adjacent structures, and balconies shall be
visually compatible with the properties, structures, sites, public ways, objects, and
places to which they are visually related.

The scale and mass of the structure will be visually compatible with other properties in the

surrounding area. The new addition will provide a balanced massing on both sides of the

main gambrel. The proposal complies with all applicable zoning and building scale
requirements.

11. Directional expression of front elevation. A structure shall be visually compatible
with the properties, structures, sites, public ways, objects, and places to which it is
visually related in its directional character, whether this be vertical character,
horizontal character, or non-directional character.

The directional expression of the front elevation is visually compatible with other properties

to which it is visually related.

12. The distinguishing original qualities or character of a property, structure, site, or
object and its environment shall not be destroyed. The alteration of any historic
material or distinctive architectural features should be avoided when possible.

The entire existing residence remains unchanged except for the hallway/corridor connection

to the new addition. The west facing exterior doorway from the existing stair hall will be

opened up approximately 7°-0 to allow a hallway element to parallel the existing living room
to the new addition. The south facing wall of the living room will have portions of stone
removed and the existing picture window to be relocated 7°-0 directly south to the hallway
wall. This will allow for a cased opening to be where the picture window was into the living
room. Otherwise, there will be no other alterations of any historic material or distinctive
architectural features. Our intention is to emulate all existing details of the existing house in
material and form and not disturb any characteristic features of the house. The new
hallway/corridor to the south extends past the living room intentionally so there is separation



from the existing living room and new addition. This allows the west wall of the existing
living room to remain unchanged. Existing windows, exterior stone fireplace details and
interior architectural elements that are significant to the living room remain intact.

13. Every reasonable effort shall be made to protect and preserve archaeological and
patural resources affected by, or adjacent to any project.

No trees on the site will be removed or effected by this proposed addition. The proposed

driveway will be designed around the existing tree south of the drive court and all measures

will be taken to preserve its condition. A full sized, detailed landscape plan has been

submitted for review and approval by staff. The new landscape plan is to compliment and

enhance existing landscaping features.

14. In considering new construction, the commission shall not impose a requirement
for the use of a single architectural style or period, though it may impose a
requirement for compatibility.

New construction is consistent in style with the existing house and surrounding area.

Respectfully submitted,

a \

|
oL f k‘c?'-:{-..b"'&ﬂv‘.l“_ -

AN

Karl Strassburger
Strassburger and Associates Inc.
President



= £ o
THE ULTY OF

LAKE FOREST

THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION APPLICATION

DESCRIPTION OF EXTERIOR MATERIALS
(The use of natural materials is strongly encouraged)

Facade Material Foundation Material
" stone Exposed Foundation Material___cC v {42z
O Brick
T Wood Clapboard Siding / BeVELEY GEVPC‘\'/
0  Wood Shingle VW{eH LAP
O  Cementitious Stucco
0 Other LB 0y 010 g

Color and/or Type of Material

Window Treatment
Primary Window Type Finish and Color of Windows
" Double Hung I Wood {recommended) 4w t=piod
0  Casement B Auminum Clad SxrepA -
O Siiding O Vinyl Clad
0 Other O  Other
Color of Finish_wR1E { MatTO ex \S'ﬂrdé)
kpAlong
Window Muntins

[J  Not Provided
O True Divided Lites

Simulated Divided Lites

B Interior and Exterior muntin bars (recommended)
0 Interior muntin bars only

[0 Exterior muntin bars only

0 Muntin bars contained between the glass

Trim Material

Door Trim Window Trim

O Limestone J  Limestone
O  Brick J  Brick

9 Wood B, Wood

J  Other O  Other

Fascias, Soffits, Rakeboards

B[ Wood

1  Ofther




THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION APPLICATION

DESCRIPTION OF EXTERIOR MATERIALS — CONTINUED

Chimney Material
O Brick
¥ Stone
O  Stucco
0 Other
Roofing
Primary Roof Material Flashing Material
3 Wood Shingles BT Copper
[0  Wood Shakes ] Other
K Slate [0 Sheet Metal
O  ClayTile
[0  Composition Shingles
O  Sheet Metal
O Other
Color of Material
Gutters and Downspouts
™ Copper
O  Aluminum
0  Other
Driveway Material

E Asphalt
Poured Concrete
O  Brick Pavers

[0  Concrete Pavers
0 Crushed Stone
0 Other

Terraces and Patios

Bluestone

Brick Pavers
Caoncrete Pavers
Poured Concrete
Other

OooooR




EXISTING SITE PLAN

"ONI ‘SAIVIDOSSY 22 dADINASSVILS
visjuoMu() “H ¢CC

W . T coan—"

’
.
el - ALY 3
= P -
e s
PLATTED CENTERLINE OF 10° WIDE FUTURE DRIVEWAY

3wa
g — s
el
N

TR~ e

_ 50JOD ££°|
mbu ; 3 bs QOT'LL
I 101

.ﬁ»«zu

%

330.79'

N _\
g%

N

= T INOLSIMIE

S 00702°00" E

~TE
w1l
ooy

[Ir- SENRg— 1Y A
C

" pacagisau
anvaid ¥ 500

L3

—gas!

g2
;?

_ Qz:om
™.

ug[q 9IS SunsIXy



PROPOSED SITE PLAN

Avmaniad 9 161X
LaNO2 AOLOW 2, 181X3 —
ATVM INOLS dFS0H0aE —

AJINT dIHFA0D D,16IX3

SHTVM ANOLS 2,191X3
HOAOS dFAIAOD D 161X —

FONIISTA FWvaid »

ANOLS KIS T D,18IX3

AvMIAING D, 181X3 —
ONIATING- N0 "D, L8IX3 —

SLIN

NOILIAAY Jvaid ¥
ANOLS K18 ¢ d350d0ad

— LYMIARC JI6OEONS

/.

NIHOLIM dIS0dOd

\

N

Ollvd dIAYd d3C0d0ad ——

18NO2 TIvEITIoId d3sodosd ———

NVId HLIS

TVANLOALIHOYY

N

N

\

Y



SOUTH ELEVATION - EXISTING HOUSE

[—r]

EXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE : 3/32" = 1'- O"



SOUTH ELEVATION - PROPOSED ADDITION

STANDING SEAM COPPER ROCF ==
\\
SLATE ROOF TO MATCH EXIST'G \
LAY CHIMNET POT TO MATCH EXISTG, %,
R METAL SPIRE TO \
MATCH EXIST'G. 5
,,,,, _ / /
3n E — | . \.
- \\
1 \
\\
”? "\I
||v4,_ ..... g
—— !!_ s \‘ o
—— T T ZH| NN 1
— | il LTI = =
~ :
L ]J = —
T /I ' - :
[ |
i 1 __L—WoOD SHIP-LAP SIDING TO MATCH EXISTG. 222
___________________________________ o e
________________________ o ]
LE “: COPPER GUTTER ¢ DNSF"Iﬂ STSTEM TO MATCH EXISTG.
|
| I 1
1 | STONE VENEER TO MATCHIEXISTG. L
___________________________________ =l A o—
L @ _ NEEn BE NSRS DS TS W SN W . WU e 4

PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE : 3/32" =V - "

TH ELEVATION

SCALE : 6" = I' - ©"



WEST ELEVATION - EXISTING HOUSE

(-
(-
|-

R =i Eazs]

EH
“nttuja
Hlz==z)=
OEHEHE
m[===a)[=]

EXISTING WEST ELEVATION

SCALE - ne" = I' - 2"



WEST ELEVATION — PROPOSED ADDITION

STANDING SEAM COPPER ROOF

CLAY CHIMNEY POT TO MATCH EXIST'G.

SLATE ROOF TO MATCH EXIST'G.

WooD SHIP-LAFP SIDING TO MATCH EXIST'G. 7
COPPER GUTTER ¢ DNSPT. $TSTEM TO MATCH EXIST'G.

= / /— STONE VENEER TO MATCH EXIST'G.
- ]

= S /

TITIITIIT 1T
11 LIl LI1
T I IT1 T11 1T
ITIIT JI T T T 11
Tl 101 1T 101

o
[

o |
J
.

— -z 'E_ — I ‘k— T I = “]_k‘ = il = ‘g !E’ -
- —.— _I _—I -.:I__I _-j-' ]- - -'
= —— & = — = = = | £ TIieine
o o " e |{ i ]E
i | ] N ANENEAS = o
____________________ 5 : ”EF“‘ { | I
e ————— - i LANDING e e e
T ) | ; o Sem—
| g | 9'-0" X 8'-0" WOOD OVERHEAD DOORS TO MATCH EXISTE.
|| i | |
R e LS e e e o= L
e — e ————— S S U U RPN e ——— -

PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION
SCALE :3/32' s I' - @"




NORTH ELEVATION - EXISTING HOUSE

|
H

i
f

OHH|H

| OEHHIH
|
mEmn

| OHH|H

EXISTING NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE - 3/32" = |' - "



NORTH ELEVATION - PROPOSED ADDITION

SLATE ROCOF TO MATCH EXIST'G —\

CLAY CHIMNEY POT TO MATCH EX(E‘:TG/ \

— METAL SPIRE TC
L MATCH EXIST'G.
A\ =

&
™
E
7 I
\
S .

HHETTTHITE

e i)
STANDING: SEAM COPPER Rooh _._T / /

R o " i A,
STONE FIRERLACE W/ RAISED LN,EARTH—* 7 .
/ 1
STONE VENE{ER To MATCH Exne‘.‘r . / !
1

—— If ““““ ===y

PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE ; 3/22" =1' - @"

[OEH
]

EXISTING + PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE : 1Ne" = ' - @"



EAST ELEVATION — EXISTING HOUSE

S S oy

I
|
T
1|
1

I

I

1
CTTT
(|
T

l
|

\

P

EE |

C__E|

m
—:
i
i
i
il
/I

L 1H

il

—
—:

b
N=

EXISTING EAST ELEVATION

SCALE - Ve = I' - @"



CLAY CHIMNET POT TO MATCH EXIST'G. —— —_—
BLATE ROOF TO MATCH EXIST'G. Y
Woop SHIP-LAP SIDING TO MATCH EXIST'G. \\
COPFPER GUTTER 4 DNSFPT. SYSTEM TO MATCH EXIsT'G.‘\
STONE YENEER TO MATCH EXIST'G.
\ \ A\
] y: \ —
TL LI I T
2 N msmmsnman
R B
—|.n LT LI 1L -
;Illlf-;'\llll |I Illl lr tll '=
LI L LTIl E
LTI TIIT IL L
'; Illl |I Fl‘ llk\llll IlllJ lll
|E 1 | : — VEST,
= | E. _k -3
al ] | =T Iu
L | i | Ff:‘ = =]
i e =
e N = e e e |
| | | |
I I | | | [
| 1 | | | [t s et 1,
'J__—lJ _______________________ J-l____ l :---;' __________________ —i
ol e e e et et l l !
|
: : .
| | | I
AT e —— B e e S e e ]
- . . ———— A e e e e e  — ———————— - —d

PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION

SCALE 1 3/32" s | - @"

EAST ELEVATION - PROPOSED ADDITION



ROOF PLAN

+

EXISTING + PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

SCALE  Ifig" =V - @"



BUILDING SECTIONS

129" SECOND FLOOR LINE P B'-2" SECOND FLOOR LNE

i,

]

/ANSECTION /BNSECTION
W SCALE: /8" = I' - " \\13// SCALE: /" =1- "




PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

b

LI

¥ o ®”e
N

;.

3
i3 ...
¥

3 [
s il
—=

k-

ey

3

B e

]

‘§i’ =
3

|

£

| ) -
T

EXISTING + PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: lg" = I' - 2"



PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

T——— i é IrJ e
BT
|!] - )

[

-

¥ f |E -1;

!

|1 N

s e
H

_______ . ‘;.4 ___T_‘i_-___“ -

NS = — !
s T {0 i *
El g T H

¥
] Pa

NS

aa

s

EXISTING + PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: Ile" = I' - @"




PRELIMINARY SITE GRADING PLAN

DEMOLITION PLAN

N _.__/’J \\ gravel drive
~Z \
~
U~ \\\\ -
~o e -
~ \
~ \
e 153
e Dil.ain_\\=" o

| —Troa F
%:ﬁﬁazw

Lot Area = 1.775 Ac

Existing Impervious
Driveway

House

Guest House
Walls

Covered Stoops
Patios

Walks

Sports Court

Total

Proposed Impervious

Driveway

House & New Addition™
GuestHouse
Walls

Covered Stoops
Walks

Patios

Pickle Ball Court
Pool

Pool Equip Pad
Total

6510

4329

688

417

486

1896

309

892

16027 sf = 0.368 Ac {20.7%)

9644
6602
688
530
529
965
4459
900
1057
44
25418 sf = 0.584 Ac (32.9%)

* includes Residence, Garage, Covered Porch & Area Well

SITE GRADING PLAN

LOT 1IN WHALLEY SUBDIVISICN, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN THE NORTHWEST
QUARTER CF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREQF RECORDED APRIL 17, 1930

AS DOCUMENT NUM,BER 2896644, IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

N
\&
2}
B

£

P
T
|

RO MH Ty AP

.
RIm701.5
v - match extg.

LGECNES

| | I.r'

L \’f ——
. & ¥
%\I /4-\

)‘/
\ ot/
P\t Fanca ~
g “V\g'\"- £

1 1 Storm MH -
~ Rim 68424
I, 691.56 Booudpuc oy Il
v, 8B G2 S -
g 10 Storm P Exig. 107 Storm Sewer Inv, 692.35 \ Extg. 10° Stom Sewor Iitv. 893.60 | I, G54.35
S u - < " —~ ( P - Extg. 10 Storm Sewer
R g2y — e —A N L2 = 320.00" { { = { ©
Iy BEE.THE N et o !
i sAEE Vo _\. o Existiog 10" Storm Sewer
I S Taz W l\l \\« E i B3 :,‘ (Coneiects to Storm System cn 210 Omyeptsia) o N 5 W 5 New Fencs per e 698 - '—’._;_;___
8 % . 7 2 5, % 5 2 A % %
e L 694 - 5 b % 3 ik Z % %
/ N % : : Y ed 2
£ o 7 T stong il <
[ 0 g P v Bl S
Y o StomMH -2 —
. & mmew10 @ / e =t 3
‘\‘ i | 8" v, 880.07% \ A ! = \
X V| 10" ihv, B83.00¢ \ { sro1zs 8
(W Yo N ! & Dawnspout & Yard Drain Collector %/
~ () 1%] % %/ & PVC SDR 26 @2% minimum Yasbmn Rm I |
* 3 % . Connect ta New Starm Manhale 1 7035 7020

gravel drive

2 7035 70142
3 7035  700.90
4 7035  700.45
5 70425 70275 |
New Fence per
das
b SitFence
f Treo Fance
<\ 8
300
Y 2
-\ -
/{ i \
Iencscaping
: *
\A / /7 S .'\ 71\9
i /S B Z \ G
L £ /, /,l" ,.l,.fll, / ‘ LI»/‘TMFemx
y / //.-’/ St Fence 705
LLd s /
INCSAL S / i ;V .
o) LT (ON
) (L)L MG
T / % 8 i
‘(//, _— 0
& Existing Storm Sewer {typ) ' b Fool Mech Pad il %
A 187 Lancscape scmonnly

bit. pavement

BLECK

engineers | surveyors

Bleck Engineering Company, Inc.
1375 North Western Avenue
Lake Forest, lllinois 60045

T847.295.5200 F 847.295.7081
www.bleckeng.com

222 E.
Onwentsia Road
Lake Forest, IL

N

S|
o 10 o 40
Scale 1"=20"

BENCHMARK:

ARRCW NUT ON FIRE HYDRANT
NEAR SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SITE
ELEVATION = 705,02 (NAVD B8)

ISSUED DATE  1SSUED FOR
W | 2112022 |REVIEW
W | 03.022022 REVIEW

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

"To the best of our knowledge and belief,
the drainage of the surface waters wil)
aot be changed by the construction of
this project or any part thereaf, or that if
such surface waters drainage will be
changed, reasonabls provisions have
been made for the collection and
diversion of such surface waters into
public areas or drains which the
developer has a right to use, and that
such surface waters will be planned for
in aceardance with generally accepted
engineefing practices so as to raduce
the likelihoed of the damage to the
adjolning property bacause of the
construction of the project.”

Patrick J. Bleck, PE

Lcarte No. 052042678 Expiree 110071

03.02.2022

HOLLAND RESIDENCE

70-1254 | Project No.
DJD | Drawn By

Extsting Storm Sewar —,_ 0 10400 New Gate
——— New Fence per
— StomMH Pool Codes
| Rim70388 34 =
i e
0\ = ﬂ*
S e P
A ) = e
s - ~ Q.
= - — =g e -~
o % —G -
——— e g
- 2 -
 sosktercs . % A %

PJB | Checked By

Drawing No.

Drawing Name

Site Grading Plan




CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN

Fefe
CILENE

HAENTARAS

B fon fraseae Ié
S = _ ——— i ] ol §
\/ *%;m\x\f 5 §g§g§§§ %5
3y A fonli

/3




Sge
31
3 4
6.
34

Size
24"

Size
18"
18"
30"
24°
3
16"
24
24"
18"
3
249"

PROPOSED PLANTING LIST

222 E Onwentsia Road
Lake Forest, iL

Shade Trees and Omamental Trees

Acer freeman: “Armstrong’ sirong Maple
Cercis Canadens|s ‘Ruby Falls’ Ruby Falls Redbud
Cercis canadensis "Forest Pangy’ Forest Pansy Redoud
Pyrus calleryane Chandicleer Chanticlear Paar

Evergreen Trees and Shrubs

Buxus ‘Groen Valvet Green Vevet Boxwood
Ornamental Shrubs

Azales '‘Karens' Karens Azales

Ciethra ‘Rutyy Spice Ruby Spice Summersweet

Orarvitla 'Kodiak Biack' Kodiak Black Bush Honaysuckle

Hydeangoa Quickfire’ Quickfire Hydrangoa

Hy®&rangea ‘Linplight Prime’ Limelight Pame Hydrangea

Hydrangea ‘Little Quick Firg' f.itie Quick Fire Hydrangesa

Hydrangea ‘Strawberry Sundae’ Strawbatry Sundae Hydvangea

Rosa Knotk Out Double Pink Doutde Pink Knockowt Rose

Rosa Fraer Carpes Pink Pk Carpet Rose

Syringa spatula "Miss Kim' Miss K Lilae

Syringsa % Penda Blocomerang Liac

Perennials, Grasses, Ferns and Ground Covers

Size
1 Gal
1Gal
1 Gal

1 Gal.

1 Gal
1 Gal
1 Gal
1 Gal
1 Gal

1 Gal.

1 Gal
IGa
1 Gt
1 Gat
1Gat
163
1Ga
1Ga!

Latin Name Common Nama
Anagmone 'Pamina’ Pamina Angmone
Al Surrmzr Beauty Sumener Beauly Allium
Ashibe japaaica ‘Oefit Lace Detit Lace Astilbe
Aslilba Vision' Viswon Aslilbe

Astiibe "Purple Candles furple Candias Astilbe
Coreopsis ‘Zagreb’ Zagreb Coreopsis
Ecmnacea 'Magnus' Purple Coneflowe”

Geranum Max Frei'
Heuchera ‘Palsce Purpln'
Heucheara Plum Puedng’
{eucanthemum ‘Daisy May
Mszanthys Adago’
Nepela Purrsian Blue'
Nepeta ‘Early Big”

Max Frei Geranium
glace Purple Coralbel=
Plum Pugging Coralbels
Daigy May Daisy

Owar! Maiden Grass
Purrsian Biue Catmint
Eary Birg Catmnt

Pulmonaria ‘Raspberry Splash Raspberny Splash Lungwort
Rudbeckis tuigida ‘Golisturm Black Eved Susan
Salvia ‘Caradonny’ Caragonna Salvia

Stacy's ‘Humrmelo’

Hummelo Stachys



222 E. Onwentsia
STRASSBURGER & ASSOCIATES, INC.



Existing Residence

Front Yafd outbuilding sout

222 E. Onwentsia
STRASSBURGER & ASSOCIATES, INC.



Existing Residence

e .y Tt S —— - i T 2 5
TISRER e e e L S T R 5 X

Side yard east

Side yard east

222 E. Onwentsia
STRASSBURGER & ASSOCIATES, INC.



Existing Residence

Side yard west

222 E. Onwentsia
STRASSBURGER & ASSOCIATES, INC.



Existing Residence / typical architectural details

Typical dormer detail

Typical covered porch detail

222 E. Onwentsia
STRASSBURGER & ASSOCIATES, INC.



	Lake-Woodbine Bridge 03.16.2022
	Lake-Woodbine Bridge 03.16.2022.pdf
	SMSM-Copier22031517150.pdf
	11x17.pdf

	SMSM-Copier22031517220.pdf

	222.E.Onwentsia.Road.03.16.2022



